w
—
71V

Agenda

Prosper Town Council Meeting
TOWN OF Council Chambers

P S P E R Prosper Town Hall
250 W. First Street, Prosper, Texas

) Tuesday, November 26, 2019
Prosper is a place where everyone matters. 5:45 PM

Call to Order/ Roll Call.

Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance and Pledge to the Texas Flag.

Announcements of recent and upcoming events.

Presentations.

1. Library Services Annual Update. (LS)
2. One Book, One Town Presentation. (LS)

3. Presentation of a Certificate of Appreciation to a Prosper Eagle Scout in recognition of
his work on the Prosper Book Trail. (LS)

CONSENT AGENDA:

Iltems placed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine in nature and non-controversial.
The Consent Agenda can be acted upon in one motion. Items may be removed from the
Consent Agenda by the request of Council Members or staff. Zoning-related Public Hearing
items on the Consent Agenda have received a unanimous recommendation for approval by the
Planning & Zoning Commission, and no written opposition was received prior to the posting of
this agenda. Those wishing to speak on a Public Hearing item on the Consent Agenda should
complete a “Public Meeting Appearance Card” and present it to the Town Secretary prior to the
meeting.

4. Consider and act upon the Minutes from the November 12, 2019, Town Council
Meeting. (RB)

5. Consider and act upon canceling the December 24, 2019, Prosper Town Council
meeting. (RB)

|©

Consider and act upon adopting the ExpressVote EVS 6.0.2.0 Universal voting system
in Collin County, and the Hart Intercivic Verity Voting 2.3 voting system in Denton
County, for early voting in person, early voting by mail, Election Day voting, and
provisional voting for all elections held within the Town of Prosper. (RB)

|~

Consider and act upon approving a Standard Form of Agreement with Pogue
Construction Co., LP, for the construction of additional Town Hall office space; and
authorizing the Town Manager to execute the same. (CS)

|

Consider and act upon approving the purchase of one Ford transit van from Silsbee
Ford, Inc., through the Texas Local Government Purchasing Cooperative; and one
Rovver camera truck system from Green Equipment Co., through the Houston-
Galveston Area Council (HGAC) Cooperative Purchasing Program. (FJ)

Page 1

Page 1 of 233




|©

Consider and act upon rejecting all proposals received in response to CSP No. 2020-
13-B for Project I: Drainage and Sanitary Sewer Improvements for North Church Street
and North Parvin Street; and Project Il: Grading, Drainage and Structures for Old Town
Retention Pond. (PA)

10. Conduct a Public Hearing, and consider and act upon an ordinance rezoning 0.8+
acres from Single Family-15 (SF-15) to Downtown Office (DTO), located on the
northwest corner of Second Street and Coleman Street. (Z19-0019). (AG)

Citizen Comments:

The public is invited to address the Council on any topic. However, the Council is unable to
discuss or take action on any topic not listed on this agenda. Please complete a “Public Meeting
Appearance Card” and present it to the Town Secretary prior to the meeting.

REGULAR AGENDA:

If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a “Public Meeting Appearance Card” and present
it to the Town Secretary, preferably before the meeting begins. Pursuant to Section 551.007 of
the Texas Government Code, individuals wishing to address the Council for items listed as public
hearings will be recognized when the public hearing is opened. For individuals wishing to speak
on a non-public hearing item, they may either address the Council during the Citizen Comments
portion of the meeting or when the item is considered by the Town Council.

Items for Individual Consideration:

11. Conduct a Public Hearing, and consider and act upon a request to rezone 2.1+ acres
from Office to Planned Development-Office (PD-O), located on the west side of future
Mahard Drive, south of future Prairie Drive, to facilitate the development of a Limited
Service Hotel (Holiday Inn Express). (Z19-0016). (AG)

12. Conduct a Public Hearing, and consider and act upon a request to amend 654.0+
acres of Planned Development-40 (PD-40), for Windsong Ranch, generally located on
the west side of Teel Parkway, south of Parvin Road, in order to modify the residential
development standards, including but not limited to; decreasing the overall lot count;
incorporating smaller lot types; and providing architectural and landscape regulations.
(Z219-0020). (AG)

13. Presentation of recent administrative updates to the Thoroughfare Plan, reflecting
existing roadway conditions, right-of-way dedication, and/or easement
acquisition. (AG)

Executive Session:

Recess into Closed Session in compliance with Section 551.001 et seq. Texas Government Code,
as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, to deliberate regarding:

Section 551.087 — To discuss and consider economic development incentives.

Section 551.072 — To discuss and consider purchase, exchange, lease or value of real
property for municipal purposes and all matters incident and related thereto.

Section 551.076 — Deliberation of the deployment, or specific occasions for
implementation, of security personnel or devices at Town Hall.

Page 2

Page 2 of 233




Section 551.071 - Consultation with the Town Attorney regarding legal issues relative
to Section 1.03.002 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, and all matters incident and
related thereto.

Section 551.074 — To discuss and consider personnel matters and all matters incident
and related thereto.

Reconvene in Reqular Session and take any action necessary as a result of the Closed
Session.

Possibly direct Town staff to schedule topic(s) for discussion at a future meeting.

Adjourn.
CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted at Prosper
Town Hall, located at 250 W. First Street, Prosper, Texas 75078, a place convenient and readily
accessible to the general public at all times, and said Notice was posted by 7:30 p.m., on
Friday, November 22, 2019, and remained so posted at least 72 hours before said meeting was
convened.

Robyn Battle, Town Secretary Date Notice Removed

Pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Town Council reserves the right to consult
in closed session with its attorney and to receive legal advice regarding any item listed on this agenda.

NOTICE

Pursuant to Town of Prosper Ordinance No. 13-63, all speakers other than Town of Prosper staff are limited
to three (3) minutes per person, per item, which may be extended for an additional two (2) minutes with
approval of a majority vote of the Town Council.

NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT PUBLIC MEETINGS: The Prosper Town Council meetings are wheelchair
accessible. For special services or assistance, please contact the Town Secretary’s Office at (972) 569-
1011 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting time.

Page 3
Page 3 of 233




g - Item 4.
N
1\ Minutes
Prosper Town Council Meeting
TOWN OF Council Chambers

P S P E R Prosper Town Hall
250 W. First Street, Prosper, Texas

) Tuesday, November 12, 2019
Prosper is a place where everyone matters.

Call to Order/ Roll Call.

The meeting was called to order at 5:47 p.m.

Council Members Present:

Mayor Ray Smith

Mayor Pro-Tem Curry Vogelsang, Jr.

Deputy Mayor Pro-Tem Jason Dixon (arrived at 5:53 p.m.)
Councilmember Marcus E. Ray

Councilmember Craig Andres

Councilmember Meigs Miller (arrived at 6:00 p.m.)
Councilmember Jeff Hodges

Staff Members Present:

Harlan Jefferson, Town Manager

Terry Welch, Town Attorney

Robyn Battle, Town Secretary/Public Information Officer
Chuck Springer, Executive Director of Administrative Services
Kelly Wilson, Finance Director

Betty Pamplin, Accounting Manager

Kala Smith, Human Resources Director

Dudley Raymond, Parks and Recreation Director

Paul Naughton, Landscape Architect

Hulon Webb, Engineering Services Director

Pete Anaya, Assistant Director of Engineering Services — Capital Projects
John Webb, Development Services Director

Alex Glushko, Planning Manager

Doug Kowalski, Police Chief

Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance and Pledge to the Texas Flag.

Pastor John Fowler from First Presbyterian Church of Prosper led the invocation. The Pledge of
Allegiance and the Pledge to the Texas Flag were recited.

Announcements of recent and upcoming events.

Councilmember Ray read the following announcements:

Winter averaging for the Town’s wastewater charges begins on November 15 and ends on
February 15. Every year, the Town uses residential water consumption for these three months
to determine average wastewater usage for the year. Contact the Utility Billing department for
more information.

Entries for the Prosper Christmas Parade, sponsored by the Prosper Rotary Club, are now being
accepted. The parade will begin at 2:30 p.m. on December 7, and will travel along Broadway to

Page 4

Page 1 of 7




Item 4.

Downtown. Community groups, civic organizations, scout troops, and businesses are
encouraged to participate.

The annual Prosper Christmas Festival is moving back to Downtown Prosper on Saturday,
December 7 from 3:00-7:00 p.m. This year's event will include a Kids Christmas Shop,
complimentary horse-drawn carriage rides, Santa’s Workshop with interactive children’s art
projects, Community Stage performances, and a Kid Zone with rides and attractions. The evening
will end with Mayor Smith lighting the Community Christmas Tree, with fireworks to follow as the
festival finale. More information is available at www.ProsperChristmasFestival.org

Councilmember Ray thanked Cub Scout Troop 1902 for meeting with Mayor Smith earlier this
evening to learn about leadership in the community.

Discussion ltems.

1. Presentation of the Government Finance Officer Association (GFOA) Award for
Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual Financial Reporting. (KN)

Mayor Smith presented the award to Finance Director Kelly Wilson and Accounting
Manager Betty Pamplin.

Deputy Mayor Pro-Tem Dixon arrived at 5:53 p.m.
2. Downtown Live! Discussion (DR)

Parks and Recreation Director Dudley Raymond briefed the Council on plans for the
Downtown Live! event in 2020. The Town has budgeted $50,000 for this event. The
Council directed staff to pursue sponsorships and other fundraising efforts, identify a
headline performer, and investigate holding the event on Broadway rather than the
Town Hall parking lot. Additionally, the Council directed staff not to have alcohol sales,
which will cut down substantially on the event cost. The Council would like to see
more vendors at the next event, and perhaps involve downtown business owners and
volunteers in the planning of the event.

Councilmember Miller arrived at 6:00 p.m.

CONSENT AGENDA:

Items placed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine in nature and non-
controversial. The Consent Agenda can be acted upon in one motion. Items may be
removed from the Consent Agenda by the request of Council Members or staff.

3. Consider and act upon the Minutes from the October 22, 2019, Town Council
Meeting. (RB)

4, Receive the September Financial Report. (KW)

5. Receive the Quarterly Investment Report. (KW)

6. Consider and take action upon Resolution No. 19-81 expressing official intent to
reimburse costs of Town capital improvement program projects that may be

funded with proceeds of bonds or other obligations, if those costs are paid prior
to the issuance of such bonds or other obligations. (KW)

7. Consider and act upon Resolution No. 19-82 appointing members to the Board

of Directors of the Town of Prosper Crime Control and Prevention District. (K\WA
Page 5

Page 2 of 7




Item 4.

8. Consider and act upon authorizing the Competitive Sealed Proposal (CSP)
procurement method for construction of the Fishtrap Road (Teel Intersection
Improvements) and Fishtrap & Teel Parkway Traffic Signhal projects. (PA)

10. Consider and act upon arequest for a Subdivision Waiver for alot without street
frontage for the Mav Addition, Block A, Lot 4, on 4.4+ acres, located north side
of Fishtrap Road, west of Legacy Drive. The property is zoned Office (O). (D19-
0062).

11. Consider and act upon arequest to permit open fencing in the front yard of Lot
14, Prestonview Estates, Phase 1, located at 8967 Prestonview Drive. (V19-
0003). (JW)

12. Consider and act upon whether to direct staff to submit a written notice of
appeal on behalf of the Town Council to the Development Services Department,
pursuant to Chapter 4, Section 1.5(C)(7) and 1.6(B)(7) of the Town’s Zoning
Ordinance, regarding action taken by the Planning & Zoning Commission on any
Site Plan or Preliminary Site Plan. (AG)

Councilmember Andres removed Item 9 from the Consent Agenda.

Mayor Pro-Tem Vogelsang made a motion and Councilmember Hodges seconded the
motion to approve all remaining items on the Consent Agenda. The motion was
approved by a vote of 7-0.

9. Consider and act upon authorizing the Town Manager to execute an Interlocal
Agreement between the Prosper Independent School District, and the Town of
Prosper, Texas, related to the construction and/or expansion of Segments 1
through 4 of Fishtrap Road. (HW)

Hulon Webb, Director of Engineering Services, responded to questions regarding the
timeline and budget for the different segments of the project. Some budget
adjustments are due to the recent changes in the Town’s pavement standards. Town
Manager Harlan Jefferson stated that the Town will utilize a Competitive Sealed
Proposal method of procurement to select a vendor for the project, which is more
competitive, and should result in greater cost savings compared to other bidding
methods.

After discussion, Councilmember Andres made a motion and Councilmember Hodges
seconded the motion to approve Item 9. The motion was approved by a vote of 7-0.

Citizen Comments:

The public is invited to address the Council on any topic. However, the Council is unable
to discuss or take action on any topic not listed on this agenda. Please complete a “Public
Meeting Appearance Card” and present it to the Town Secretary prior to the meeting.

There were no Citizen Comments.

REGULAR AGENDA:

If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a “Public Meeting Appearance Card” and
present it to the Town Secretary, preferably before the meeting begins. Pursuant to
Section 551.007 of the Texas Government Code, individuals wishing to address the
Council for items listed as public hearings will be recognized when the public hearing is

opened. For individuals wishing to speak on a non-public hearing item, they may eitt

Page 6
Page 3 of 7




Item 4.

address the Council during the Citizen Comments portion of the meeting or when the item
is considered by the Town Council.

Items for Individual Consideration:

13.

14.

Conduct a Public Hearing, and consider and act upon an ordinance modifying
the development standards of Planned Development-40 (PD-40), for Windsong
Ranch, regarding key lot side yard setbacks. (Z19-0015). (AG)

Planning Manager Alex Glushko presented this item before the Town Council. The
proposed amendment is to eliminate the PD-40 regulation for a 25’ key lot side yard
setback, thus adopting the Town’s standard key lot side yard setback regulation, which
requires it match the adjacent front yard setback and accommodates the staggered
setback provision.

Mayor Smith opened the Public Hearing.
With no one speaking, Mayor Smith closed the Public Hearing.

Councilmember Miller made a motion and Councilmember Ray seconded the motion
to approve Ordinance No. 19-83 modifying the development standards of Planned
Development-40 (PD-40), for Windsong Ranch, regarding key lot side yard setbacks.
The motion was approved by a vote of 7-0.

Conduct a Public Hearing, and consider and act upon a request to amend
Planned Development-68 (PD-68), Shops at Prosper Trail, on 33.2+ acres,
located on the northeast corner of Preston Road and Prosper Trail, generally to
modify the development standards, including but not limited to permitting a
drive-through restaurant, outdoor sales and display, modified parking
regulations, and architectural design. (Z19-0017). (AG)

Planning Manager Alex Glushko presented this item before the Town Council. The
purpose of this request is to amend Planned Development-68 (PD-68), Shops at
Prosper Trail, 33.2+ acres, to modify the development standards to accommodate
existing development, as well as to allow for the development of the remaining pad
sites within the development. Mr. Glushko reviewed the details of the request. Don
Silverman, the applicant, also provided an overview of the proposed changes, noting
that all of the buildings in the development will have a consistent palette of materials.

Mayor Smith opened the Public Hearing.

O. B. Barsh, 1350 Preston Road, Prosper, spoke in favor of the development, and
provided photographs of the requested outdoor storage for Council’s review. He noted
that the items will be brought in at night, and would not impede sidewalk traffic or the
sidewalk ramp.

Curt Mooney, 1230 Packsaddle Trail, Prosper, spoke in opposition to the item, stating
that there was significant opposition to the development in 2014, since it did not comply
with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan at the time. He encouraged the Council to
uphold the Town’s standards and prohibit outdoor sales and storage, and the drive-
through restaurant.

Barbara Nugent, 961 Grassy Shore, Prosper, spoke in opposition to the item, noting
the noise and traffic that would accompany the drive-through restaurant.

Page 7

Page 4 of 7




15.

16.

Item 4.

With no one else speaking, Mayor Smith closed the Public Hearing.

The Council discussed the modifications to the parking area. Although the
modifications were made without Town review or permitting, the Council was
supportive of the applicant’s request to allow the parking to remain as it currently
exists.

Town Attorney Terry Welch responded to questions from the Council on the proposed
Development Agreement. An ordinance and a development agreement will be brought
forward for Council consideration at a future meeting which will incorporate the terms
discussed tonight, as well as detailed building elevations.

After discussion, Councilmember Ray made a motion and Councilmember Hodges
seconded the motion to approve the request to amend Planned Development-68 (PD-
68), Shops at Prosper Trail, on 33.2+ acres, located on the northeast corner of Preston
Road and Prosper Trail, subject to the following conditions and exceptions:

1. Denial of the drive-through restaurant use on Lot 6;

2. Approval of the flat-roof architecture on Lot 7, subject to approval of a development
agreement, including elevations consistent with proposed Exhibit F;

3. Denial of additional outdoor sales and display uses;

4. Approval of the modified parking on Lot 5, as it presently exists; and

5. Approval of a development agreement, including elevations of the office located
on Lot 8 consistent with proposed Exhibit F.

The motion was approved by a vote of 5-2, with Deputy Mayor Pro-Tem Dixon and

Councilmember Miller casting the opposing votes.

Consider and act upon authorizing the Town Manager to execute Contract
Amendment #1 to the Professional Services Agreement between Halff
Associates, Inc., and the Town of Prosper, Texas, related to the design of the
Prosper Trail (Coit — Custer) project. (PA)

Pete Anaya, Assistant Director of Engineering Services — Capital Projects, presented
this item before the Town Council. As part of the adoption of the Town’s 2019-2020
Capital Improvement Program, the Town Council approved the funding for the
construction of two lanes of the ultimate four lanes on Prosper Trail from Coit Road to
Custer Road. The proposed Contract Amendment #1 includes the revision of the
design plans to proceed from the 90% to 100% design, repackages the submittal of
construction drawings and specifications to reflect the construction of two lanes of the
ultimate four-lane design, modifies the drainage system to include open drainage, and
provides record drawings at conclusion of construction.

The Council expressed a preference to accelerate the timeline on this project. Town
Manager Harlan Jefferson noted that the project is currently scheduled so that design,
right-of-way acquisition, and utility relocation can occur concurrently.

After discussion, Councilmember Hodges made a motion and Councilmember Andres
seconded the motion to authorize the Town Manager to execute Contract Amendment
#1 to the Professional Services Agreement between Halff Associates, Inc., and the
Town of Prosper, Texas, related to the design of the Prosper Trail (Coit — Custer)
project. The motion was approved by a vote of 7-0.

Consider and act upon an ordinance amending Subpart (4) “Amount of Park

“Park Land Dedications, and Fees,” of Section 6, “Subdivision Desi

Page 5 of 7

Improvement Fee,” of Subsection (H), “Park Improvement Fee,” of Section 6.2|g.
Page 8




Item 4.

Standards,” of the Subdivision Ordinance by removing park improvement fee
amounts; amending Subsection (2) “Other Fees,” of Section V, “Development
Fees,” of Appendix A, “Fee Schedule,” of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, by
establishing new park improvement fees and amending the term, “Park Fee” to
“Park Land Fee Lieu of Dedication” in the “Fee Schedule.” (MD19-0008)

Parks and Recreation Director Dudley Raymond presented this item before the Town
Council. At the Town Council Strategic Session in January 2019, staff presented the
current park improvement and park dedication fee rates. During the presentation, staff
received direction from Town Council regarding the amount of fees that should be
increased in the near term, as well as possible fee increases in the future. Staff
recommended, and Council agreed, on no change to the “Fee in Lieu of Park Land
Dedication” requirement because it is currently meeting the needs of existing parks,
and appears to be sufficient for future park needs. Town staff proposed an increase
in the single family unit Park Improvement Fee from $1,500 to $2,300, and an increase
in the multifamily unit fee from $2,000 to $2,800. The Town'’s fees have not been
updated since 2010. Staff met with the Prosper Developers Council (PDC) on
September 10, 2019, to discuss the updated park improvement fee rates. Staff did
not receive any formal comments from the PDC.

Mayor Smith recognized the following individual who requested to speak:

David Lehde, 5816 W. Plano Parkway, Plano, Director of Government Affairs at the
Dallas Builders Association, spoke in opposition to the item, stating that the proposed
Park Improvement Fees are higher that those of the surrounding cities, and will
ultimately increase home prices for future homeowners in Prosper.

Responding to a question from the Town Council, Town Attorney Terry Welch
responded that the fee goes into effect when the property is platted.

After discussion, Deputy Mayor Pro-Tem Dixon made a motion and Councilmember
Miller seconded the motion to table Item 16 indefinitely. The motion was approved by
a vote of 7-0.

Executive Session:

Recess into Closed Session in compliance with Section 551.001 et seq. Texas Government
Code, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, to deliberate regarding:

Section 551.087 — To discuss and consider economic development incentives.

Section 551.072 — To discuss and consider purchase, exchange, lease or value
of real property for municipal purposes and all matters incident and related
thereto.

Section 551.071 - Consultation with the Town Attorney regarding legal issues
associated with incentivization and revitalization of residential construction in
the Old Town District, and all matters incident and related thereto.

Section 551.071 - Consultation with the Town Attorney regarding legal issues
associated with ordinance waivers, exceptions, and recommendations, and all
matters incident and related thereto.

Page 9

Page 6 of 7




Item 4.

Section 551.071 - Consultation with the Town Attorney regarding legal issues
relative to Section 1.03.002 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, and all matters
incident and related thereto.

Section 551.074 — To discuss and consider personnel matters and all matters
incident and related thereto.

The Town Council recessed into Executive Session at 8:57 p.m.

Reconvene in Reqular Session and take any action necessary as a result of the Closed
Session.

The Town Council reconvened the Regular Session at 11:41 p.m. No action was taken as a result
of the Closed Session.

Possibly direct Town staff to schedule topic(s) for discussion at a future meeting.

17. No parking on Talon. (HW)

Hulon Webb, Director of Engineering Services, briefed the Council on a safety concern
with parking along Talon Lane before and after school. Prosper ISD plans to erect
permanent “no parking” signs in the area. The Prosper Police Department is assisting
with enforcement in the area; however, the Town would need to adopt an ordinance
and enter into an agreement with Prosper ISD in order to issue citations for parking
violations.

18. Fence on west side of Talon. (HW)

Mr. Webb briefed the Council on a safety concern with students crossing the train
tracks near the new football stadium. The Town proposed a fence and pedestrian
bridge near the railroad tracks prior to the construction of the stadium; however,
Prosper ISD, who owns the property adjacent to the railroad tracks, declined. A partial
fence currently exists along the eastern property boundary of the football stadium,
along Wesley Drive. Town staff was directed to stay in communication with Prosper
ISD regarding the construction of a fence along the railroad tracks.

Adjourn.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:55 p.m. on Tuesday, November 18, 2019.
These minutes approved on the 26™ day of November 2019.

APPROVED:

Ray Smith, Mayor

ATTEST:

Robyn Battle, Town Secretary

Page 10

Page 7 of 7




Item 5.

w
7))

TOWN SECRETARY/PIO
PRIDSPER

Prosper is a place where everyone matters.

To: Mayor and Town Council

From: Robyn Battle, Town Secretary

Through: Harlan Jefferson, Town Manager

Re: Town Council Meeting — November 26, 2019

Agenda ltem:
Consider and act upon canceling the December 24, 2019, Prosper Town Council meeting.

Description of Agenda Item:

The second Regular Town Council meeting in December falls on Tuesday, December 24, 2019.
Town offices will be closed due to the Christmas holiday; therefore, Town staff is proposing that
the December 24, 2019, Town Council meeting be canceled.

Proposed Motion:
I move to cancel the December 24, 2019, Prosper Town Council meeting.

Page 11

Page 1 of 1




Item 6.

TOWN SECRETARY/PIO

w
771

TOWN OF

PRODSPER

Prosper is a place where everyone matters.

To: Mayor and Town Council
From: Robyn Battle, Town Secretary/PIO
Through: Harlan Jefferson, Town Manager

Re: Town Council Meeting — November 26, 2019

Agenda Item:

Consider and act upon adopting the ExpressVote EVS 6.0.2.0 Universal voting system in Collin
County, and the Hart Intercivic Verity Voting 2.3 voting system in Denton County, for early voting
in person, early voting by mail, Election Day voting, and provisional voting for all elections held
within the Town of Prosper. (RB)

Description of Agenda ltem:

In August 2019, the Collin County Commissioners Court voted to approve the ExpressVote
Universal Voting System, EVS 6.0.2.0 for early voting and Election Day voting. The new system
replaces the county’s 15-year-old system. Denton County adopted a similar system, the Hart
InterCivic 2.3 voting system, in November 2017. Both systems utilize a ballot-marking system that
prints out a paper ballot for each voter to verify before it is scanned and tabulated. The
ExpressVote system used in Collin County and the Hart InterCivic system used in Denton County
have both been certified by the Texas Secretary of State.

Collin County has requested all entities who contract with the County for election services to adopt
the new voting system. Since the Town also contracts with Denton County for election services,
and to ensure compliance with Texas Election Code Chapter 123, Subchapter A, Town staff is
recommending the Town Council formally adopt both voting systems.

Attached Documents:
1. Collin County Commissioners Court Order 2019-697-08-26
2. Denton County Commissioners Court Order 17-0489
3. Texas Secretary of State Certification of ExpressVote EVS 6.0.2.0 Voting System
4. Texas Secretary of State Certification of Hart InterCivic Verity Voting 2.3 Voting System

Town Staff Recommendation:

Town staff recommends the Town Council adopt the ExpressVote EVS 6.0.2.0 Universal voting
system in Collin County, and the Hart Intercivic Verity Voting 2.3 voting system in Denton County,

Page 12

Page 1 of 2




Item 6.

for early voting in person, early voting by mail, Election Day voting, and provisional voting for all
elections held within the Town of Prosper.

Proposed Motion:

I move to adopt the ExpressVote EVS 6.0.2.0 Universal voting system in Collin County, and the
Hart Intercivic Verity Voting 2.3 voting system in Denton County, for early voting in person, early

voting by mail, Election Day voting, and provisional voting for all elections held within the Town of
Prosper.

Page 13
Page 2 of 2




Item 6.

State of Texas $ Court Order
Collin County N 2019-697-08-26
Commissioners Court S

An order of the Commissioners Court adopting the ExpressVote Universal Voting System for Early Voting in
Person, Early Voting by Mail, Election Day Voting, and Provisional Voting in all future elections held in Collin
County.

Whereas, on January 28, 2019, the Collin County Commissioners Court voted unanimously to award RFP No.

2018-241 for the new voting systems to Election Systems and Software; and

Whereas, the Texas Secretary of State has officially approved the contract between Collin County and ES&S for
the purchase of the ExpressVote Universal Voting System; and

Whereas, the ExpressVote Universal Voting System, EVS 6.0.2.0 consisting of Electionware election
management software, ExpressVote ballot marking device, ExpressTough curbside voting device, DS200
precinct tabulator/scanner, DS450 high speed central scanner, and DS850 high speed central scanner have been

certified by both the Texas Secretary of State and the United States Election Assistance Commission;

Now, therefore, be it resolved that the Commissioners Court of Collin County adopts the ExpressVote Universal
Voting System consisting of Electionware election management software, ExpressVote ballot marking device,
ExpressTouch curbside voting device, DS200 precinct tabulator/scanner, DS450 high speed central scanner, and
DS850 high speed central scanner. This voting equipment will be used for Early Voting in Person, Early Voting
by Malil, Election Day Voting, and Provisional Voting in all future elections held in Collin County.

Passed and approved this 26" day of August, 2019.

-

L Ee

e
Chris Hill, County Judge

KMM@M%&/\

Susan Fletcher, Commissioner, Pct 1

Cheryl Wééms, Commissioner, Pct 2 ATTEST: Stacey Kemp, County Clerk

Darrell Hale, Commissioner, Pct 3

%////?/

ncan Webb, Commissioner, Pct4

Page 14




Item 6.

DENTON COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT

06/20/2017
Month \__\Da@\*irﬁ%
$ —o—t
6. A. Court Order Number
THE ORDER:

Approval of purchase of Verity Voting System, RFP #04-17-2534, through the BuyBoard Contract
#460-14, from Hart Intercivic for the Paper Option inclusive of the Poll Pad System and the first year
license and support, less equipment trade in, for a total of $8,787,104 as recommended by Frank
Phillips, Elections Administrator; approval to declare existing election equipment as surplus and
authorize trade-in for a $345,000 credit towards the purchase; and any appropriate action.

Motion by i”ﬁ% Seconded by *\D\(Y\

County Judge Yes j

Mary Hom Abstain ___
No .
Absent
Commissioner Pct No 1 Yo __ Comnis sion a Pot No 2 Yes
Hugh Coleman Abstain ___ Ron Mardh ant Abstin
No No
Absent * Absent 9¢
Commissi oner Pct No 3 ve R Commis sion e Pct No 4 Yes W
Bob bieJ. Mitch e} Abstain __ Andy Eads Abstin
No No
Absent ﬁmt
L]
L]
Motion Carried
Other Action: Pulled from Consent No Action Postponed

FTHE COMMISSIONERS COURT: ATTEST:

] L uke, County Clerk
Wz E xOfficio Clerk of the
i ssion ers Courtof

APPROVED AS TO F

AssistaWrid Altdrney

Denton County Page 3 of 3 Printed on { P age 15

163of S



ate of Texas ltem 6.

TR N
/ ,\bi&f’i, ?'\v
s SN

Elections Division Phone: 512-463-5650

P.O. Box 12060 RS 7)) Fax: 512-475-2811

Austin, Texas 78711-2060 S > Dial 7-1-1 For Relay Services

WWW.S0S.texas.gov S (800) 252-VOTE (8683)
David Whitley

Secretary of State

REPORT OF REVIEW OF ES&S EVS 6.0.2.0 AND THE EXPRESSVOTE XL
PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

On January 22, 2019, Election Systems & Software (the “Vendor”) presented EVS 6.0.2.0 and the
ExpressVote XL for examination and certification. The examination was conducted in Austin, Texas.
Pursuant to Sections 122.035(a) and (b) of the Texas Election Code, the Secretary of State appointed
the following examiners:

1. Mr. Tom Watson, an expert in electronic data communication systems; and
P Mr. Charles Pinney, an expert in election law and procedure.

Pursuant to Section 122.035(a), the Texas Attorney General appointed the following examiners:

1. Dr. Jim Sneeringer, an expert in electronic data communication systems; and
2. Mr. Ryan Vassar, an employee of the Texas Attorney General.

On January 22, 2019, Mr. Watson, Mr. Pinney, Dr. Sneeringer, and Mr. Vassar were present and
witnessed the installation of the EVS 6.0.2.0 software and firmware that the Office of the Texas
Secretary of State (the “Office”) received directly from the Independent Testing Authority. Mr.
Pinney and Ms. Krystine Ramon, a staff attorney with the Office, examined the accessibility
components of the ExpressVote XL.

After the accessibility review, the Vendor demonstrated the system and answered questions presented
by the examiners. Test ballots were then processed on the ExpressVote XL. The results were
accumulated and later verified for accuracy by staff of the Secretary of State.

Examiner reports on the system are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

On March 13, 2019, a public hearing was conducted in which interested persons were given an
opportunity to express views for or against certification of the system.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF EVS 6.0.2.0 AND THE EXPRESSVOTE XL
The EVS 6.0.2.0 Voting System contains a new hardware component and an updated version of

the reporting module in the ElectionWare software in previous versions of EVS that the Secretary
of State certified on December 15, 2016, July 28, 2017, and November 15, 2018.

Page 16




Item 6.

EVS 6.0.2.0 (together with ExpressVote and ExpressTouch) has been evaluated at an accredited
independent voting system testing laboratory for conformance to the 2005 Voluntary Voting
System Guidelines. It has received Elections Assistance Commission (EAC) # ESSEVS6020 on
October 4, 2018.

The components of EVS 6.0.2.0 are as follows:

Component Version Description

ExpressVote XL 1.0.0.0 Accessible ballot marker and precinct
scanner

ExpressTouch 1.0.0.0 Accessible electronic vote capture and

- tabulation device

DS200 2.17.0.0 Precinct Scanner and Tabulator

DS450 3.1.0.0 Central Scanner and Tabulator B

DS850 3.1.0.0 Central Scanner and Tabulator

ExpressVote HW 1.0 1.5.0.0 Accessible electronic ballot marker B

ExpressVote HW 2.1 2.4.0.0 Accessible electronic ballot marker and
precinct scanner

ElectionWare 5.0.1.0 Database system that allows jurisdictions to
code, lay out ballots, and burn media

ES&S Event Log Service 1.6.0.0 Background function that monitors the
functioning of Windows Event Viewer

ExpressVote Previewer 1.5.0.0 Allows user to preview screen and layout

1.0 and audio for ExpressVote
ExpressVote Previewer 2.4.0.0 Allows user to preview screen and layout
2.1 and audio for ExpressVote

Removable Media Service 1.5.0.0 Supports installation and removal of election

and results media

FINDINGS

The following are the findings, based on written evidence submitted by the Vendor in support of its
application for certification, oral evidence presented at the examination, and Texas voting system
examiner reports.

The EVS 6.0.2.0 Voting System and the ExpressVote XL ballot marking device and precinct scanner
meet the standards for certification as prescribed by Section 122.001 of the Texas Election Code.
Specifically, the EVS 6.0.2.0 and the ExpressVote XL components, among other things:

Page 17




Item 6.

p—

Preserve the secrecy of the ballot;

2. Are suitable for the purpose for which they are intended,

3. Operate safely, efficiently, and accurately and comply with the voting system standards
adopted by the Election Assistance Commission;

4, Are safe from fraudulent or unauthorized manipulation;

5. Permit voting on all offices and measures to be voted on at the election;

6. Prevent counting votes on offices and measures on which the voter is not entitled to vote;

7. Prevent counting votes by the same voter for more than one candidate for the same office or,
in elections in which a voter is entitled to vote for more than one candidate for the same office,
prevent counting votes for more than the number of candidates for whom the voter is entitled
to vote;

8. Prevent counting a vote on the same office or measure more than once;

9. Permit write-in voting;

10. Are capable of permitting straight-party voting; and

11.  Are capable of providing records from which the operation of the system may be audited.

CONCLUSION

Accordingly, based upon the foregoing, I hereby certify the EVS 6.0.2.0 Voting System and the
ExpressVote XL for use in elections in Texas.

- . 29%
Signed under my hand and seal of office, this “‘day of , 2019.
{ < B
JOSE A%. 2SPANZA__

DEPUTY SECRETARY OF STATE

Page 18




Item 6.

Phone: 512-463-5650

Fax: 512-475-2811

Dial 7-1-1 For Relay Services
(800) 252-VOTE (8683)

Elections Division

P.O. Box 12060

Austin, Texas 78711-2060
WWW,S0S.texas.gov

Secretaof State

REPORT OF REVIEW OF HART INTERCIVIC VERITY VOTING 2.3 SYSTEM
PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

On May 22-23, 2019, Hart InterCivic Inc. (the “Vendor”) presented Verity Voting 2.3 for examination
and certification. The examination was conducted in Austin, Texas. Pursuant to Sections 122.035(a)
and (b) of the Texas Election Code, the Secretary of State appointed the following examiners:

Mr. Tom Watson, an expert in electronic data communication systems;
Mr. Brian Mechler, an expert in electronic data communication systems;
Mr. Brandon Hurley, an expert in election law and procedure; and

Mr. Charles Pinney, an expert in election law and procedure.

BN

Pursuant to Section 122.035(a), the Texas Attorney General appointed the following examiners:

Ir Dr. Jim Sneeringer, an expert in electronic data communication systems; and
2 Mr. Ryan Vassar, an employee of the Texas Attorney General.

On May 22, 2019, Mr. Pinney, Mr. Mechler, and Dr. Sneeringer witnessed the installation of the
Verity Voting 2.3 software and firmware that the Office of the Texas Secretary of State (the “Office”)
received directly from the Independent Testing Authority. Mr. Pinney and Ms. Heidi Martinez, a
staff attorney with the Office, examined the accessibility components of the Verity Touch, the Verity
Touch with Access, the Verity Touch Writer with Access, and the Verity Touch Writer Duo.

On May 23, 2019, the Vendor demonstrated the system and answered questions presented by the
examiners. Test ballots were then processed on each voting device. The results were accumulated
and later verified for accuracy by staff of the Secretary of State.

Examiner reports regarding the Verity Voting 2.3 system are attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference.

On July 10, 2019, pursuant to Section 122.0371 of the Texas Election Code, the Office held a public
hearing for interested persons to express views for or against the certification of the Verity Voting 2.3
system.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF VERITY VOTING 2.3

The Verity Voting 2.3 system is an updated version of the Verity Voting 2.0 system, which the
Office certified in December 2016 for use in Texas elections. The updated version includes

Page 19




Item 6.

software enhancements to the existing election management system and introduces a new voting
device, the Verity Touch Writer Duo. The Touch Writer Duo is a ballot marking device that
allows users to input their selections on a digital interface and prints a paper record of the vote that
can be scanned and tabulated using a precinct or central scanner.

Verity Voting 2.3 has been evaluated at an accredited independent voting system testing laboratory
for conformance to the 2005 Voluntary Voting System Guidelines (VVSG). Verity Voting 2.3
was certified by the U.S. Election Assistance Commission (EAC) on March 15, 2019.

The components of Verity Voting 2.3 are as follows:

Component Version Description
Verity Data 2.3.1 Data management software
Verity Build 2.3.1 Election definition software :
Verity Count 2.3.1 Tabulation and reporting software
Verity Central 2.3.1 Central scanning software
Verity User Manage_ment 2.3.1 User management software
Verity Election Management | 2.3.1  |Election management software
Verity Desktop 2.3.1 Election management software
Verity Scan 2.3.1 Precinct scanner
Verity Touch Writer with 2.3.1 Ballot marking device with accessibility
Access features
Verity Controller 2.3.2 Voting machine ballot activation device
Verity Touch 2.3.1 'Direct-recording electronic voting machine
Verity Touch with Access 2.3.1 -.Birect-recording electronic voting machine
B with accessibility features
Verity Touch Writer Duo 2.3.1 Ballot marking device
FINDINGS

The following are the findings, based on written evidence submitted by the Vendor in support of its
application for certification, oral evidence presented at the examination, and the written reports of the
voting system examiners (all of whom recommended certifying the Verity Voting 2.3 system for use
in Texas elections).

Page 20




Item 6.

The Verity Voting 2.3 system, including its hardware and software components, meets the standards
for certification as prescribed by Section 122.001 of the Texas Election Code. Specifically, the Verity
Voting 2.3 system and its components, among other things:

1.
2.

w

Nk

10.
11.

Preserve the secrecy of the ballot;

Are suitable for the purpose for which they are intended;

Operate safely, efficiently, and accurately and comply with the voting system standards
adopted by the Election Assistance Commission;

Are safe from fraudulent or unauthorized manipulation;

Permit voting on all offices and measures to be voted on at the election;

Prevent counting votes on offices and measures on which the voter is not entitled to vote;
Prevent counting votes by the same voter for more than one candidate for the same office
or, in elections in which a voter is entitled to vote for more than one candidate for the
same office, prevent counting votes for more than the number of candidates for whom the
voter is entitled to vote;

Prevent counting a vote on the same office or measure more than once;

Permit write-in voting;

Are capable of permitting straight-party voting; and

Are capable of providing records from which the operation of the system may be audited.

CONDITIONS

In their written reports, some of the voting system examiners indicated that the Verity Voting 2.3
system does not provide a software solution to address the ballot-numbering requirements in Sections
51.006-.008, 52.062, and 62.009 of the Texas Election Code. However, the examiners noted that
jurisdictions that adopt the Verity Voting 2.3 system can still comply with these requirements by
following additional procedures provided by the Vendor. Therefore, the certification of system is
conditioned on jurisdictions utilizing these additional procedures to comply with the Texas Election
Code’s ballot-numbering requirements when using the Verity Voting 2.3 system.

CONCLUSION

Accordingly, based upon the foregoing, I hereby certify Hart InterCivic’s Verity Voting 2.3 system
for use in Texas elections, subject to the above condition.

: >
Signed under my hand and seal of office, this 4 day of —\o \,u\ 2019.

q\é‘ | e

i D

JOSE A(HSPARZA—"
DEPUTY SECRETARY OF STATE

Page 21




Item 7.

TOWN MANAGER’S

= =2
o OFFICE
P TOWN OF R
Prosper is a place where everyone matters.
To: Mayor and Town Council
From: Chuck Springer, Executive Director of Administrative Services

Through: Harlan Jefferson, Town Manager

Re: Town Council Meeting — November 26, 2019

Agenda Item:

Consider and act upon approving a Standard Form of Agreement with Pogue Construction Co.,
LP, for the construction of additional Town Hall office space; and authorizing the Town Manager
to execute the same.

Description of Agenda ltem:

The construction of additional Town Hall office space for the Mayor was an approved FY 2019-
2020 discretionary package in the amount of $125,000. The Town will be connecting to existing
systems. Therefore, the Town will use Pogue Construction Co., LP, the CMAR for Town Hall, in
order to maintain the integrity of mechanical and system warranties.

Budget Impact:

The cost for design and construction of additional Town Hall office space is $103,465.77, and will
be funded from General Fund Non-Departmental Capital Expenditures (Account No. 100-6610-
10-99).

Legal Obligations and Review:
Terrence Welch of Brown & Hofmeister, L.P., has approved the Agreement as to form and legality.

Attached Documents:
1. Proposal
2. Plan Details
3. AIA Document A101-2017 Standard Form of Agreement
4. AIA Document A201-2007 General Conditions of the Contract

Town Staff Recommendation:

Town staff recommends approving a Standard Form of Agreement with Pogue Construction Co.,
LP, for the construction of additional Town Hall office space; and authorizing the Town Manager
to execute the same.

Page 25

Page 1 of 2




Proposed Motion:

Item 7.

I move to approve a Standard Form of Agreement with Pogue Construction Co., LP, for the
construction of additional Town Hall office space; and authorize the Town Manager to execute the

same.

Page 2 of 2

Page 26




POLUE

CONSTRUCT/ION

POWERED BY PEOPLE

Attachment 1

Item 7.

Cost Proposal

To: Description:  Mayor's Office Build out
Town of Prosper Date: 10/29/2019
200 South Main Street
Prosper, TX 75078
S T LS Description Cost
01A- General Requirements
Pogue Staff S 10,000.00
Pogue Insurance S 307.81
Maintenance Bond -2yr S 513.02
Cleaning- Daily/ Final S 1,000.00
Elevator protection S 300.00
Dust Control S 300.00
06A- Millwork Provide and install wood base and wood portals to match existing S 5,780.00
08A- Glazing Provide glazing at doors and sidelites S 1,000.00
08B- Door/ Hardware Provide and install aluminum frames, hardware, and wood doors to match existing S 7,607.00
09A- Framing/Drywall Provide framing and drywall per plans S 30,888.00
09B- Flooring Provide labor only to install flooring. Attic stock material to be used S 1,062.00
09B- Floor protection As required at existing spaces S 500.00
09C- Painting Provide tape, bed and paint to match existing S 3,920.00
22A- Fire Suppression Add sprinkler heads as required to existing fire suppression system S 2,870.00
23A- HVAC Provide HVAC ductwork, insulation and grilles, as required to tie into existing VAV's S 14,500.00
23B- Test and Balance Provide Test and Balance of new space S 1,000.00
26A- Electrical Provide electrical as shown including power, lighting, and low voltage rough in S 9,612.00
27A- Data cabling Provide and install data cabling as shown S 1,254.00
28B- Fire Alarm Provide and install fire alarm as required tied into existing system S 3,475.00
28C- Access Control Provide access control at corridor entry only S 2,650.00
CM Fee @ 5% S 4,926.94

Total

Cost per S/F= $ 194.48
Total SF= 532

Clarifications
Temporary Electric excluded- (use existing)
Corner guards exlcuded
All Audio/ Visual scope excluded- Data cabling only included
Furniture excluded
Shop drawings included for Fire alarm and fire suppression only.
Pricing based on information in the attached drawing set, RED areas only
HVAC system to tie into existing VAV units. No equipment included in this pricing
No flooring material included in this proposal. Labor only included. Attic stock material will be used.
Door at corridor entry to include card reader and electrified hardware
Finishes to match existing
Contract to be standard AIA 101 language with standard A201 General Conditions
Inspection fees excluded
Permit fees excluded
Sales tax excluded
P&P Bond Excluded

$ 103,465.77

Page 27




2

( |
Dimension Plan

7

Attachment 2

&

f \ BIRD CONTROL DEVICES ON HORIZONL\L
A SURFACE OF PATIO ENTABLATURE- TYP.

-4
TI'[ Re-paint/ re-finish existing wall |

RAILINdi TYPEB Tl ‘7"7“‘ RAILING TYPE B
210 o e i — = = or <
} ROOF DECK-..__ | | = ROOF DECK 4
RORIORRGIE T Mg;\IQGER | | L @7@ 7@ |
— — E——— a——W——0——F
’ | | \ |
Bl | UNFINISHED ‘
[ HARDWARE e \ o (SHELL 3)
i w0R3K1R700M — 60" 7
—H | ‘\ \‘ ROOF T
; | | ACCESS 4
7T<{ | \» / 320 CTAR A1 1
| _ B FEC o un. T
_4 INFORMATION w T—
ul " TECHNOLOGY | | ‘ [ "ijm 3009 >
=8 314 ‘ ' I ELEV. EQUIP.
! [A2 e 300.5 \§
! n | | ‘ | | ey, # CORRIDOR
'| D Re-use' estt\‘ng door and frame -& z | | o A ol | g
— || ;" CABLER KD N — = - i . - - é* — — &
- 7i = —STORAGE ] B f UN P t|p'=|| kt/r‘-th _ N —_— I_
\ - — — — rortal miiwork to matc - — ] —
_ | IE T T I N\ adjacent door across hall |
/ l | — J i — — 4 Y — (detail next page)
/Bl LOBBY o mi) @ h “
| \ .MAl ann i ‘ I TN~ *m 154 P9 FF




PARTITION TYPES

Plan details

MARK 1st DIGIT: STRUCTURE / THICKNESS MARK 2nd DIGIT: FINISH MARK 3rd DIGIT: SPECIAL
MATERIAL THICKNESS GYPSUM BOARD

SINGLE LAYER DOUBLE LAYER SHAFT LINER DISCRIPTION XXKKKK)

1SIDE | 2 SIDES 18IDE | 2 SIDES XX XX
A METAL STUDS 358" 1 ° 1H 1 HOUR
B METAL STUDS 6" 2 L] 2H 2 HOUR XXAXXX
c METAL STUDS 158" 3 L4 L SD SOUND RATED XXIAX XX
D METAL STUDS 21/2" 4 [
3 HAT CHANNEL /8" 5 L
F HAT CHANNEL 1172 6 o
G C-H METAL STUD 4 7 ] .
H DOUBLE METAL STUD 9
J METAL

47/8"

BOX BEAM AS

35/8° METAL STUDS

REQUIRED

x4

SHIM SPACE

ALUM FRAME

BALLASTIC GLAZING

/ 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD

,ﬁ METAL CORNER BEAD

HEAD

3= 10"

47/8"

}:5,‘8“ (TELLER SIDE)

DOUBLE STUDS \

x4

JAMB

3" = 10"

]:5/5“ (TELLER SIDE)

~

w

IS

o

>

Attachment 2

DIMENSION CONTROL PLAN GENERAL NOTES

ALL LETTER AND NUMBER DESIGNATIONS LISTED IN THE SCHEDULES ABOVE MAY NOT BE USED.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL DIMENSIONS BE DIRECTLY MEASURED FROM THIS DOCUMENT.

PARTITION TYPES SHALL BE TYPE A2 WITH ACOUSTICAL BATTS 1 HR RATED TO DECK UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

PROVIDE RATED DECK CLOSURE AT ALL FIRE RATED PARTITIONS AS REQUIRED BY CODE. REFER TO DETAILS

9-1012'
4-712

-61/2"

g

&

2.

o

‘?\2 1/4

DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF FINISH MATERIAL, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. DIMENSIONS TO EXTERIOR WALLS ARE TO FINISH FACE OF SILL
WALL. CLEAR DIMENSIONS SHALL NOT VARY AND ARE MEASURED AT THE FLOOR LINE.

COORDINATE, CONFIRM AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, WHERE APPLICABLE, WITH STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL AND PLUMBING
1

ALL GYPSUM BOARD IS 5/8" THICK UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. REFER TO SPECIFICATION SECTION 092900 GYSUM BOARD FOR TYPE AND

3.3

5.9

Page 29

T. ENTRY CORRIDOR

3/8|| — 1|_O||



Init.

Attachment 3

Item 7.

‘*@AIA Document A101" - 2017

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor where the basis
of payment is a Stipulated Sum

AGREEMENT made as of the day of in the year
(In words, indicate day, month andyear.) ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document has
BETWEEN the Owner: added information needed for its
(Name, legal status, address and other information) completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
Town of Prosper AlA standard form. An Additions and
250 W. First St. Deletions Report that notes added
Prosper, TX 75078 information as well as revisions to

the standard form text is available
from the author and should be
reviewed. A vertical line in the left
margin of this document indicates
where the author has added
necessary information and where
the author has added to or deleted
from the original AlA text.

and the Contractor:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Pogue Construction Co., LP
1512 Bray Central Drive, Suite 300

McKinney, TX 75069
This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
for the following Project: attorney is encouraged with respect
(Name, location and detailed description) to its completion or modification.
) The parties should complete
Mayor's Office Build Out A101™-2017, Exhibit AF,) Insurance
and Bonds, contemporaneously with
this Agreement. AlA Document
A201™-2017, General Conditions
The Architect: of the Contract for Construction, is
(Name, legal status, address and other information) adopted in this document by
reference. Do not use with other
N/A general conditions unless this

document is modified.

The Owner and Contractor agree as follows.

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internation age 30
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties,
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:58:13 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No.
2833912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BYADAYA)

AIA Document A101™ — 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 andi
P




Init.

Attachment 3

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT

3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
4 CONTRACT SUM

5 PAYMENTS

6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

8 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
EXHIBIT A INSURANCE AND BONDS

ARTICLE1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

Item 7.

The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary, and other
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of this Agreement, other documents listed
in this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract, and
are as fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. The Contract represents the
entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. An enumeration of the Contract Documents, other than a Modification, appears in

Article 9.

ARTICLE 2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT
The Contractor shall fully execute the Work described in the Contract Documents, except as specifically indicat
the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of others.

ARTICLE 3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§ 3.1 The date of commencement of the Work shall be:
(Check one of the following boxes.)

[ 1 The date of this Agreement.
[X ] A date set forth in a notice to proceed issued by the Owner.

[ ] Established as follows:
(Insert a date or a means to determine the date of commencement of the Work.)

If a date of commencement of the Work is not selected, then the date of commencement shall be the date of this
Agrecment.

§ 3.2 The Contract Time shall be measured from the date of commencement of the Work.
§ 3.3 Substantial Completion

§ 3.3.1 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall
achieve Substantial Completion of the entire Work:

ed in

AlA Document A101™ — 2017, Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internationa
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties,
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:58:13 ET on 11/11/2019 und
2933912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes:

:] Page 31

ler Order No.

(3BSADA4A)



Init.

Attachment 3

Item 7.

(Check one of the following boxes and complete the necessary information.)
[X ] Not later than One hundred and fifty ( 150 ) calendar days from the date of commencement of the Work.
[ 1 By the following date:

§ 3.3.2 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, if portions of the Work
are to be completed prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work, the Contractor shall achieve Substantial
Completion of such portions by the following dates:

Portion of Work Substantial Completion Date

§ 3.3.3 If the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion as provided in this Section 3.3, liquidated damages,
if any, shall be assessed as set forth in Section 4.5.

ARTICLE 4 CONTRACT SUM

§ 4.1 The Owner shall pay the Contractor the Contract Sum in current funds for the Contractor’s performance of the
Contract. The Contract Sum shall be One hundred and three thousand, four hundred and sixty-five dollars and
seventy- seven cents ($ 103,465.77 ), subject to additions and deductions as provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2 Alternates

§ 4.2.1 Alternates, if any, included in the Contract Sum:
Item Price
None

§ 4.2.2 Subject to the conditions noted below, the following alternates may be accepted by the Owner following
execution of this Agreement. Upon acceptance, the Owner shall issue a Modification to this Agreement.
(Insert below each alternate and the conditions that must be met for the Owner to accept the alternate.)

ltem Price Conditions for Acceptance
None

§ 4.3 Allowances, if any, included in the Contract Sum:
(Identify each allowance.)

Item Price
None

§ 4.4 Unit prices, if any:
(Identify the item and state the unit price and quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.)

Item Units and Limitations Price per Unit ($0.00)
None

§ 4.5 Liquidated damages, if any:
(Insert terms and conditions for liquidated damages, if any.)

$100/ Day

§ 4.6 Other:
(Insert provisions for bonus or other incentives, if any, that might result in a change to the Contract Sum.)

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internation: age 32

AIA Document A101™ — 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and
j P

Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties,

prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:58:13 ET on 11/11/2019 un NO:
2933912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3B9ADA4A)



Init.

Attachment 3

Item 7.

ARTICLE 5 PAYMENTS

§ 5.1 Progress Payments

§ 5.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Architect by the Contractor and Certificates for
Payment issued by the Architect, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Sum to the
Contractor as provided below and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 5.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of
the month, or as follows:

§ 5.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not later than the 5th day of a month,
the Owner shall make payment of the amount certified to the Contractor not later than the 25th day of the same
month. If an Application for Payment is received by the Architect after the application date fixed above, payment of
the amount certified shall be made by the Owner not later than forty five (45 ) days after the Architect receives the
Application for Payment.

(Federal, state or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.)

§ 5.1.4 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the
Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire Contract
Sum among the various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form, and supported
by such data to substantiate its accuracy, as the Architect may require. This schedule of values shall be used as a
basis for reviewing the Contractor’s Applications for Payment.

§ 5.1.5 Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end
of the period covered by the Application for Payment.

§ 5.1.6 In accordance with ATA Document A201™-2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, and
subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be computed as
follows:

§ 5.1.6.1 The amount of each progress payment shall first include:

A That portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to completed Work;

.2 That portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to materials and equipment delivered and suitably
stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the completed construction, or, if approved in
advance by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing; and

.3 That portion of Construction Change Directives that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s
professional judgment, to be reasonably justified.

§ 5.1.6.2 The amount of each progress payment shall then be reduced by:

A The aggregate of any amounts previously paid by the Owner;

.2 The amount, if any, for Work that remains uncorrected and for which the Architect has previously
withheld a Certificate for Payment as provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A201-2017;

.3 Any amount for which the Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material supplier,
unless the Work has been performed by others the Contractor intends to pay;

4 For Work performed or defects discovered since the last payment application, any amount for which
the Architect may withhold payment, or nullify a Certificate of Payment in whole or in part, as
provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A201-2017; and

.5 Retainage withheld pursuant to Section 5.1.7.

§ 5.1.7 Retainage

§ 5.1.7.1 For each progress payment made prior to Substantial Completion of the Work, the Owner may withhold the
following amount, as retainage, from the payment otherwise due:

(Insert a percentage or amount to be withheld as retainage from each Application for Payment. The amount of
retainage may be limited by governing law.)

5%

AIA Document A101™ - 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2 -
Page 33 | 4

American Institute of Architects, All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internationa
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties,

prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:58:13 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No.
2933912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BSADA4A)



Init.

Attachment 3

Item 7.

§ 5.1.7.1.1 The following items are not subject to retainage:
(Insert any items not subject to the withholding of retainage, such as general conditions, insurance, etc. )

§ 5.1.7.2 Reduction or limitation of retainage, if any, shall be as follows:

(If the retainage established in Section 5.1.7.1 is to be modified prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work,
including modifications for Substantial Completion of portions of the Work as provided in Section 3.3.2, insert
provisions for such modifications.)

§ 5.1.7.3 Except as set forth in this Section 5.1.7.3, upon Substantial Completion of the Work, the Contractor may
submit an Application for Payment that includes the retainage withheld from prior Applications for Payment
pursuant to this Section 5.1.7. The Application for Payment submitted at Substantial Completion shall not include
retainage as follows:

(Insert any other conditions for release of retainage upon Substantial Completion.)

§ 5.1.8 If final completion of the Work is materially delayed through no fault of the Contractor, the Owner shall pay
the Contractor any additional amounts in accordance with Article 9 of AIA Document A201-2017.

§ 5.1.9 Except with the Owner’s prior approval, the Contractor shall not make advance payments to suppliers for
materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site.

§ 5.2 Final Payment
§ 5.2.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to the
Contractor when
A the Contractor has fully performed the Contract except for the Contractor’s responsibility to correct
Work as provided in Article 12 of AIA Document A201-2017, and to satisfy other requirements, if
any, which extend beyond final payment; and
.2 afinal Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect.

§ 5.2.2 The Owner’s final payment to the Contractor shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of the
Architect’s final Certificate for Payment, or as follows:

Upon receipt of certificate of
occupancy

§ 5.3 Interest

Payments due and unpaid under the Contract shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate stated
below, or in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where the Project is
located.

(Insert rate of interest agreed upon, if any.)

%

ARTICLE 6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

§ 6.1 Initial Decision Maker

The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201-2017, unless
the parties appoint below another individual, not a party to this Agreement, to serve as the Initial Decision Maker.
(If the parties mutually agree, insert the name, address and other contact information of the Initial Decision Maker,
if other than the Architect.)

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internation
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties

AIA Document A101™ ~ 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1987, 2007 and
j Page 34

prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:13 ET on 11/11/2019 un
2933912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3BSADA4A)



Init.

Attachment 3

Item 7.

§ 6.2 Binding Dispute Resolution

For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201-2017, the
method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows: .

(Check the appropriate box.)

[X ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 15.4 of AIA Document A201-2017
[ ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

[ 1 Other (Specify)

If the Owner and Contractor do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in
writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, Claims will be resolved by litigation in a court
of competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
§ 7.1 The Contract may be terminated by the Owner or the Contractor as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document
A201-2017.

§ 7.1.1 If the Contract is terminated for the Owner’s convenience in accordance with Article 14 of AIA Document
A201-2017, then the Owner shall pay the Contractor a termination fee as follows:

(Insert the amount of, or method for determining, the fee, if any, payable to the Contractor following a termination
Jfor the Owner’s convenience.)

§ 7.2 The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201-2017.

ARTICLE 8 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

§ 8.1 Where reference is made in this Agreement to a provision of AIA Document A201-2017 or another Contract
Document, the reference refers to that provision as amended or supplemented by other provisions of the Contract
Documents.

§ 8.2 The Owner’s representative:
(Name, address, email address, and other information)

Todd White

§ 8.3 The Contractor’s representative:
(Name, address, email address, and other information)

Roby Bledsoe

AlA Document A101™ - 2017. Copyright © 1815, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International] Page 35

Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties,

prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:13 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No.

2933912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BSADA4A)




Init.

Attachment 3

Item 7.

§ 8.4 Neither the Owner’s nor the Contractor’s representative shall be changed without ten days’ prior notice to the
other party.

§ 8.5 Insurance and Bonds

§ 8.5.1 The Owner and the Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance as set forth in AIA Document A101™—
2017, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor where the basis of payment is a Stipulated Sum,
Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds, and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 8.5.2 The Contractor shall provide bonds as set forth in AIA Document A101™-2017 Exhibit A, and elsewhere in
the Contract Documents.

§ 8.6 Notice in electronic format, pursuant to Article 1 of AIA Document A201-2017, may be given in accordance
with AIA Document E203™-2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, if completed, or as
otherwise set forth below:

(If other than in accordance with AIA Document E203-2013, insert requirements for delivering notice in electronic
Jformat such as name, title, and email address of the recipient and whether and how the system will be required to
generate a read receipt for the transmission.)

§ 8.7 Other provisions:

ARTICLE9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

§ 9.1 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents:

AIA Document A101™-2017, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor

AIA Document A101™-2017, Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds

AIA Document A201™-2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction

AIA Document E203™-2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, dated as
indicated below:
(Insert the date of the E203-2013 incorporated into this Agreement.)

i

.5 Drawings

Number Title Date
See Exhibit A

.6 Specifications

Section Title Date Pages

. Addenda, if any:

Number Date Pages

Portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal requirements are not part of the Contract
Documents unless the bidding or proposal requirements are also enumerated in this Article 9.

.8 Other Exhibits:

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internationa age 36
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties,

AIA Document A101™ — 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and Z|
P

prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:13 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No.
2933912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3BSADA4A)



Init.

Attachment 3

Item 7.

(Check all boxes that apply and include appropriate information identifying the exhibit where
required.)

[ 1 AIADocument E204™-2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, dated as indicated below:
(Insert the date of the E204-2017 incorporated into this Agreement.)

[ ] The Sustainability Plan:

Title Date Pages

[ 1 Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract:

Document Title Date Pages

.9 Other documents, if any, listed below:
(List here any additional documents that are intended to form part of the Contract Documents. AIA
Document A201™-2017 provides that the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders,
sample forms, the Contractor’s bid or proposal, portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal
requirements, and other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or
proposals, are not part of the Contract Documents unless enumerated in this Agreement. Any such
documents should be listed here only if intended to be part of the Contract Documents.)

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

Town of Prosper Pogue Construction Co., LP, a Texas Limited
Partnership, acting by and through Ben Pogue ,LC, a
Texas limited liability company, General Partner

OWNER (Signature) CONTRACTOR (Signature)

-

By: Benjamin P. Pogue, Sofe Member of Ben Pogue,
By: Harlan Jefferson, Town Manager LC, a Texas limited liability company

(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)

AIA Document A101™ — 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Page 37

Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties,

prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:58:13 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No.

2933912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3B9ADA4A)




Attachment 3

Item 7.

Additions and Deletions Report for
AIA® Document A101™ - 2017

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has
added to the standard form AIA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from
the original AlA text. Added text is shown underlined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AlA text.

Note: This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any
part of the associated AIA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated
simultaneously by AlA software at 15:58:13 ET on 11/11/2019.

PAGE 1

Town of Prosper
250 W. First St.
Prosper, TX 75078

Pogue Construction Co., LP
1512 Bray Central Drive, Suite 300
McKinney, TX 75069

Mayor's Office Build Out

N/A

PAGE 2
[X ] A date set forth in a notice to proceed issued by the Owner.
PAGE 3

[X ] Not later than One hundred and fifty ( 150 ) calendar days from the date of commencement of the Work.

§ 4.1 The Owner shall pay the Contractor the Contract Sum in current funds for the Contractor’s performance of the
Contract. The Contract Sum shall be {$-One hundred and three thousand, four hundred and sixty-five dollars and
seventy- seven cents ($ 103.465.77 ), subject to additions and deductions as provided in the Contract Documents.

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A101™ — 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974

1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.SI page 38 1
Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in sev

criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA sofiware at 15:58: on
11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BSADA4A)




Attachment 3

Item 7.

None

None

None

None

$100/ Day

PAGE 4

§ 5.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not later than the 5th day of a month,
the Owner shall make payment of the amount certified to the Contractor not later than the 25th day of the same
month. If an Application for Payment is received by the Architect after the application date fixed above, payment of

the amount certified shall be made by the Owner not later than forty five (45 ) days after the Architect receives the
Application for Payment.

Upon receipt of certificate of
occupancy

PAGE 6

[X ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 15.4 of AIA Document A201-2017

Todd White

Roby Bledsoe

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A101™ — 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 197
1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U. Page 39
Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in sev

criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:13 ET on
11/11/20189 under Order No. 2933912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3BOADA4A)



Attachment 3

Item 7.

PAGE 7
See Exhibit A
PAGE 8
Town of Prosper Pogue Construction Co., LP. a Texas Limited

Partnership, acting by and through Ben Pogue .LC. a
Texas limited liability company. General Partner

By: Benjamin P. Pogue, Sole Member of Ben Pogue,

By: Harlan Jefferson, Town Manager LC. a Texas limited liability company

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A101™ ~ 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 19851, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1967, 197,
1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.y P age 40
Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in se

criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software a

11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BIADA4A)




Attachment 3

Item 7.

Certification of Document's Authenticity
AIA® Document D401™ - 2003

I, Ben Pogue, hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, that I created the attached final
document simultaneously with its associated Additions and Deletions Report and this certification at 15:58:13 ET on
11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached
final document I made no changes to the original text of AIA® Document A101™ - 2017, Standard Form of
Agreement Between Owner and Contractor where the basis of payment is a Stipulated Sum, as published by the ATA
in its software, other than those additions and deletions shown in the associated Additions and Deletions Report.

(Signed)

(Title)

\« /1 /2014

(Dated)

AlA Document D401™ — 2003. Copyright © 1992 and 2003 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA|
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any p{ Page 41
result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was p|

software at 15:58:13 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA4A)



Exhibit A

* ; P
New scope of work includes areas in "red" only

2

+

C e/

Dimension Plan

7

f \ BIRD CONTROL DEVICES ON HORIZON&AL
A SURFACE OF PATIO ENTABLATURE- TYP.

-4
TI'[ Re-paint/ re-finish existing wall |

Attachment 3

&

RAILINdiTYPEB —— ‘fj RAILING TYPE B
H O o e i ] - or <
brooFOECK... @ ¢ -4 Ly ROOF DECK 4
® 6 B g \ » | o ® ®
o I e
I \
) | ‘\\ ‘
Bl | UNFINISHED ‘
[ HARDWARE e (SHELL 3)
||  WORKROOM — 60—
+ ? _
0 | \‘ ROOF
i | ‘ /Ac302%ss g
ﬁ INFORMATION N - ) h o o _
o TECHNOLOGY | | 3 "ijm 300.9 \C
=8 314 ‘ ' I ELEV. EQUIP.
! a2 H ——— 300.5 \§
! | | ‘ i V41 CORRIDOR
'| He-use‘estt\‘ng door and frame —-& = ‘ | O‘ o | g
~—{I";—CABLEROOM G ] _ = | ﬂ l /'qu' _ _ éﬁ E—
| —STORAGE : .
. 7|: | _ f N Portal millwork to match - - — — =
_ | 315 | I N\ adjacent door across hall
/ l | — J — — 4 Y — (detail next page)
/Bl LOBBY o mi) @ h “
l \ IMAI ann 1l | ‘ I TN~ *m 154 K913 FF




PARTITION TYPES

Plan details

MARK 1st DIGIT: STRUCTURE / THICKNESS MARK 2nd DIGIT: FINISH MARK 3rd DIGIT: SPECIAL
MATERIAL THICKNESS GYPSUM BOARD

SINGLE LAYER DOUBLE LAYER SHAFT LINER DISCRIPTION XXKKKK)

1SIDE | 2 SIDES 18IDE | 2 SIDES XX XX
A METAL STUDS 358" 1 ° 1H 1 HOUR
B METAL STUDS 6" 2 L] 2H 2 HOUR XXAXXX
c METAL STUDS 158" 3 L4 L SD SOUND RATED XXIAX XX
D METAL STUDS 21/2" 4 [
3 HAT CHANNEL /8" 5 L
F HAT CHANNEL 1172 6 o
G C-H METAL STUD 4 7 ] .
H DOUBLE METAL STUD 9
J METAL

47/8"

BOX BEAM AS

35/8° METAL STUDS

REQUIRED

x4

SHIM SPACE

ALUM FRAME

BALLASTIC GLAZING

/ 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD

,ﬁ METAL CORNER BEAD

HEAD

3= 10"

47/8"

}:5,‘8“ (TELLER SIDE)

DOUBLE STUDS \

x4

JAMB

3" = 10"

]:5/5“ (TELLER SIDE)

~

w

IS

o

>

Attachment 3

DIMENSION CONTROL PLAN GENERAL NOTES

ALL LETTER AND NUMBER DESIGNATIONS LISTED IN THE SCHEDULES ABOVE MAY NOT BE USED.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL DIMENSIONS BE DIRECTLY MEASURED FROM THIS DOCUMENT.

PARTITION TYPES SHALL BE TYPE A2 WITH ACOUSTICAL BATTS 1 HR RATED TO DECK UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

PROVIDE RATED DECK CLOSURE AT ALL FIRE RATED PARTITIONS AS REQUIRED BY CODE. REFER TO DETAILS

9-1012'
4-712

-61/2"

g

&

2.

o

‘?\2 1/4

DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF FINISH MATERIAL, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. DIMENSIONS TO EXTERIOR WALLS ARE TO FINISH FACE OF SILL
WALL. CLEAR DIMENSIONS SHALL NOT VARY AND ARE MEASURED AT THE FLOOR LINE.

COORDINATE, CONFIRM AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, WHERE APPLICABLE, WITH STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL AND PLUMBING
1

ALL GYPSUM BOARD IS 5/8" THICK UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. REFER TO SPECIFICATION SECTION 092900 GYSUM BOARD FOR TYPE AND

3.3

5.9

Page 43

T. ENTRY CORRIDOR

3/8|| — 1|_O||



Electrical / AV Plan

Attachment 3

‘ | ! 7‘ T\ Courb ‘ ‘ ‘ U‘ ‘7' | SURFACE OF PATIO ENTABLATURE- TYP. ‘
N . [ | : T # f a ) IV . o _
H L ,-\1/_L
® © 1L%6 ©
gl i Lo ‘Il",; T
I : L== gV =—4 B I Sy S—
%:%Iean power _/74 ;@‘:_ ‘ean e
’ |
| IT MANAGER | |
== 318 & “ i
UNFINISHED
| _
I o (SHELL 3)
Bt 319 2
- | ROOF
| | | | __ACCESS
N Y 320
. INFORMATION i =
_— TECHNOLOGY ¢
! 314 ‘ 320
| Al T el \
1—L 315 — — — = — j‘ F i— - | — -
TORAGE n - f ﬁ 'E = S - =
315 I | A~ c— _{.




Reflected Ceiling Plan

\ \ AR | T\ Souru CW1 ! ‘ U‘ ay SURFACE OF PATIO ENTABLATURE- TYP. ‘

\
|
S — IR F— {1 f B B — = WA\,1|’f -
t I Tl
e — A A - e
e e Il“e @

U | R 10-gAFF | | US

[

M Fire Alarm/ Suppression:
| | ! |
‘ A A
‘ ‘ — — - Tie into existing system
|T MANAGER - Design to be submitted and reviewed by Bureau Veritas (system modification)
31 8 ( %\‘ $_.1 ; ggrglpalg \r/\‘/ei;/r:erofge;n(()jr!llnlisgicgloannzje;rfjs for coverage of this new space e o
| \ AN LJ
| | — NFINISHED ‘
\ = ) I — (SHELL 3)
— L 319 ?
| | | ROOF
| | I ey S ‘ /ACSCQE)SS
\ Yz — /
. /
T T I FEC
INFORMATION 00 ARF ‘
| | R —s ]

c—-

—TH TECHNOLOGY | |
| | ! I 320
‘ 314 LU
NL - = \
|
| = |

| | ‘ Exitlight — = \MV %
315 — - - s = Fi-13

|
i TORAGE n . z_“ 7\ e = - {—%i
RED = = B ‘ T B T

. =1 \ 7~ N\ T e ST — L

Page 45




Mechanical Plan

o]
) - ) I
— i
x o
=]
o i
iy A
I i

i

;

Attachment 3

| | BIRD CONTROL DEVICES ON HORIZON
: SURFACE OF PATIO ENTABLATURE- TYP.

i

AL

HVAC grille layout to be

submitted.

| |
) @ ~~~~~~ | IT MANAGER |
== 318 | — ‘
| | 3\ |
| VAVRH-3ft 3 UNFINISHED

‘ — 4 m |
HARDWARE  |[lf= o =4f1 s T T(SHELL 3) ‘

WORKROOM LY \,_ - Tie in VAV's and install ductwork/

grilles as required for sufficient CFMs.
™ T-Stat to be located in Mayor's office.

HVAC material to match existing.

INFORMATION i
TECHNOLOGY | | ) ni
2 =/ f
[ " i gy
SERVER / | . V. #1 | CORR
Ol
~CABLE RO A— e A - - o
316 - STORAGE Z ~I | E
S T fe—— ===l ||
_ f\ _ T e o e s = -
‘ é\l \_ \‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ I ANDPV/ \ABH/ ‘ } ‘ H\ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ / \nasot )/ m ‘ —_

Page 46




L

L

Furniture Plan - for reference
(Not in Contract)

A~

J

N \

1

S

.

BIRD CONTROL DEVICES ON HORIZONTAL
SURFACE OF PATIO ENTABLATURE- TYP.

Atta

chment 3

o

RAlLlNd: TYPE B | —+— RAILING TYPE B
HHO 0| e Nl ]l = 0FD |
| ROOF DECK._.____ | “ . ROOF DECK
RORIORER O | IT MANAGER R OBICEEG
== [318 ] | e
T | | UNFINISHED |
|
- | _ | _
{1 HARDWARE W@ \ o (SHELL 3)
|| WORKROOM —
,ﬁ [319] ) N
M 0 | | \‘ ROOF
| | | ‘ CCESS <
7 | INFORMATION | | / ) = oo
il ' TECHNOLOGY | | ¢ nﬂm 09 (
ah It ELEV. EQUIP.
| e 3005 ]
| [l | T | ey, CORRIDOR
| SERVER/ | ;.c] | ko o |
5 — |l i~ CABLEROOM ) 7 T = HEE=0 0 - — = E——
| 316 ~—STORAGE \ H .
S i ] — =)
L E | 1] canow | (AT Tt AR L@ —~ T




Init.

General Conditions of the Contract for Construction

for the following PROJECT:
(Name and location or address)
Mayor's Office Build Out

THE OWNER:

(Name, legal status and address)
Town of Prosper

250 W. First St.

Prosper, TX 75078

THE ARCHITECT:

(Name, legal status and address)
N/A

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

2 OWNER

3 CONTRACTOR

4 ARCHITECT

5 SUBCONTRACTORS

6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

7 CHANGES IN THE WORK

8 TIME

9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

11 INSURANCE AND BONDS

12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT

15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

Attachment 4

Item 7.

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document has
added information needed for its
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions to
the standard form text is available
from the author and should be
reviewed. A vertical line in the left
margin of this document indicates
where the author has added
necessary information and where
the author has added to or deleted
from the original AlA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or maodification.

AIA Document A201™ ~ 2007. Copyright ©@ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 b
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties] P age 48
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pr|
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which
expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes:

(3B9ADAS0)



Init.

INDEX
(Topics and numbers in bold are section headings.)

Acceptance of Nonconforming Work
9.6.6,9.9.3,12.3

Acceptance of Work
9.6.6,9.8.2,99.3,9.10.1,9.10.3, 12.3

Access to Work

3.16,6.2.1,12.1

Accident Prevention

10

Acts and Omissions
3.2,3.3.2,3.12.8,3.18,4.2.3,8.3.1,9.5.1, 10.2.5,
10.2.8,13.4.2,13.7,14.1,15.2

Addenda

1.1.1, 3.11

Additional Costs, Claims for
3.74,3.75,6.1.1,7.3.7.5,10.3,15.1.4
Additional Inspections and Testing
94.2,9.8.3,12.2.1,13.5

Additional Insured

11.1.4

Additional Time, Claims for
324,3.74,3.7.5,3.10.2,8.3.2,15.1.5
Administration of the Contract
3.1.3,42,94,95

Advertisement or Invitation to Bid

1.1.1

Aesthetic Effect

4.2.13

Allowances

3.8,7.3.8

All-risk Insurance

11.3.1,11.3.1.1

Applications for Payment
4.2.5,73.9,9.2,9.3,9.4,9.5.1,9.6.3,9.7,9.10,
11.1.3

Approvals
2.1.1,2.2.2,24,3.1.3,3.10.2,3.12.8, 3.12.9, 3.12.10,
42.7,9.3.2,13.5.1

Arbitration

8.3.1,11.3.10,13.1,15.3.2,154

ARCHITECT

4

Architect, Definition of

4.1.1

Architect, Extent of Authority
2.4,3.12.7,4.1,4.2,5.2,6.3,7.1.2,7.3.7,74,9.2,
9.3.1,94,95,9.6.3,9.8,9.10.1,9.10.3, 12.1, 12.2.1,
13.5.1,13.52,14.2.2,14.2.4,15.1.3,15.2.1
Architect, Limitations of Authority and
Responsibility
2.1.1,3.12.4,3.12.8,3.12.10,4.1.2,4.2.1,4.2.2,
423,42.6,42.7,42.10,4.2.12,42.13,5.2.1,74,
94.2,9.53,9.64,151.3,15.2

Attachment 4

Item 7.

Architect’s Additional Services and Expenses
24,11.3.1.1,12.2.1,13.5.2,13.53,14.2.4
Architect’s Administration of the Contract
3.13,42,3.74,15.2,9.4.1,9.5

Architect’s Approvals
2.4,3.1.3,3.5,3.10.2,4.2.7

Architect’s Authority to Reject Work
35,426,12.1.2,122.1

Architect’s Copyright

1.1.7,1.5

Architect’s Decisions
3.74,426,427,42.11,4.2.12,4.2.13,4.2.14, 6.3,
7.3.7,7.3.9,8.1.3,8.3.1,9.2,9.4.1,9.5,9.8.4,9.9.1,
13.5.2,15.2,15.3

Architect’s Inspections
3.74,422,429,942,9.83,99.2,9.10.1, 13.5
Architect’s Instructions
324,33.1,426,42.7,13.5.2

Architect’s Interpretations

42.11,4.2.12

Architect’s Project Representative

42.10

Architect’s Relationship with Contractor
1.1.2,1.5,3.1.3,3.2.2,3.2.3,3.2.4,3.3.1,3.4.2,3.5,
3.74,3.7.5,3.9.2,3.9.3,3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18,
4.1.2,4.13,42,52,62.2,7,83.1,9.2,9.3,9.4,9.5,
9.7,9.8,9.9,10.2.6,10.3,11.3.7, 12, 13.4.2, 13.5,
15.2

Architect’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2,42.3,42.4,4.2.6,9.6.3,9.6.4,11.3.7
Architect’s Representations

9.4.2,9.5.1,9.10.1

Architect’s Site Visits
3.74,422,429,942,9.5.1,99.2,9.10.1,13.5
Asbestos

10.3.1

Attorneys’ Fees

3.18.1,9.10.2,10.3.3

Award of Separate Contracts

6.1.1,6.1.2

Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for
Portions of the Work

52

Basic Definitions

1.1

Bidding Requirements

1.1.1,5.2.1,114.1

Binding Dispute Resolution

9.7,11.3.9,11.3.10, 13.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6.1, 15.3.1,
15.3.2,15.4.1

Boiler and Machinery Insurance

11.3.2

Bonds, Lien

7.3.7.4,9.10.2,9.10.3

Bonds, Performance, and Payment
7.3.7.4,9.6.7,9.10.3,11.3.9,11.4

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by

Inslitute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.] P

reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pr

age 49

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(3BIADAS0)




Init.

Building Permit

3.7.1

Capitalization

1.3

Certificate of Substantial Completion
9.8.3,9.84,98.5

Certificates for Payment
42.1,425,429,9.3.3,94,9.59.6.1,9.6.6,9.7,
9.10.1,9.10.3, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.3

Certificates of Inspection, Testing or Approval
13.54

Certificates of Insurance

9.10.2,11.1.3

Change Orders
1.1.1,2.4,3.4.2,3.74,3.8.2.3,3.11, 3.12.8, 4.2.8,
5.2.3,7.1.2,7.1.3,7.2,7.3.2,7.3.6,7.3.9, 7.3.10,
8.3.1,9.3.1.1,9.10.3,10.3.2, 11.3.1.2, 11.3.4,11.3.9,
12.1.2,15.1.3

Change Orders, Definition of

7.2.1

CHANGES IN THE WORK
22.1,3.11,428,7,7.2.1,7.3.1,7.4,83.1,9.3.1.1,
11.3.9

Claims, Definition of

15.1.1

CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
3.2.4,6.1.1,6.3,7.3.9,9.3.3,9.10.4,10.3.3, 15, 154
Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims

15.4.1

Claims for Additional Cost
324,3.74,6.1.1,73.9,103.2,15.14

Claims for Additional Time
324,3.74,6.1.1,83.2,10.3.2, 15.1.5

Concealed or Unknown Conditions, Claims for
3.7.4

Claims for Damages
3.2.4,3.18,6.1.1,8.3.3,9.5.1,9.6.7,10.3.3, 11.1.1,
11.3.5,11.3.7,14.1.3,14.2.4,15.1.6

Claims Subject to Arbitration

15.3.1,154.1

Cleaning Up

3.15,6.3

Commencement of the Work, Conditions Relating to
2.2.1,3.2.2,34.1,3.7.1,3.10.1,3.12.6, 5.2.1, 5.2.3,
6.2.2,8.1.2,82.2,83.1,11.1,11.3.1,11.3.6, 11.4.1,
15.1.4

Commencement of the Work, Definition of

8.1.2

Communications Facilitating Contract
Administration

39.1,424

Completion, Conditions Relating to
3.4.1,3.11,3.15,42.2,4.29,82,94.2,9.8,9.9.1,
9.10,12.2,13.7,14.1.2

COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND

9

Completion, Substantial

Attachment 4

Item 7.

429,8.1.1,8.1.3,82.3,9.4.2,9.8,9.9.1,9.10.3,
12.2,13.7

Compliance with Laws
1.6,3.2.3,3.6,3.7,3.12.10,3.13,4.1.1,9.6.4, 10.2.2,
11.1,11.3,13.1,13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6, 14.1.1,
14.2.1.3,15.2.8,154.2,15.43

Concealed or Unknown Conditions
3.74,428,83.1,10.3

Conditions of the Contract

1.1.1,6.1.1,6.1.4

Consent, Written
3.42,3.74,3.12.8,3.14.2,4.1.2,9.3.2,9.8.5,9.9.1,
9.10.2,9.10.3,11.3.1,13.2,13.4.2,15.4.4.2
Consolidation or Joinder

15.4.4

CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY
SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

1.14,6

Construction Change Directive, Definition of

7.3.1

Construction Change Directives
1.1.1,34.2,3.12.8,4.2.8,7.1.1,7.1.2,7.1.3,7.3,
9.3.1.1

Construction Schedules, Contractor’s
3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2,6.1.3,15.1.5.2

Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts
54,14.2.22

Continuing Contract Performance

15.1.3

Contract, Definition of

1.1.2

CONTRACT, TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
OF THE

54.1.1,11.3.9, 14

Contract Administration

3.1.3,4,94,9.5

Contract Award and Execution, Conditions Relating
to

3.7.1,3.10,5.2,6.1,11.1.3,11.3.6,11.4.1
Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of
1.52,2.2.5,53

Contract Documents, Definition of

1.1.1

Contract Sum
3.7.4,3.8,52.3,72,73,74,9.1,94.2,9.5.14,
9.6.7,9.7,10.3.2,11.3.1, 14.2.4, 14.3.2, 15.1 4,
15.2.5

Contract Sum, Definition of

9.1

Contract Time
3.7.4,3.7.5,3.10.2,5.2.3,7.2.1.3,7.3.1,7.3.5,74,
8.1.1,8.2.1,83.1,9.5.1,9.7,10.3.2, 12.1.1, 14.3.2,
15.1.5.1,15.2.5

Contract Time, Definition of

8.1.1

CONTRACTOR

3

AlA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 b

Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Trealies Pa ge 50

reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pr
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933 P rroerrrrrTeT

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(3B9ADAS0)



Init.

Contractor, Definition of

3.1,6.1.2

Contractor’s Construction Schedules
3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2,6.1.3, 15.1.5.2

Contractor’s Employees
33.2,343,38.1,3.9,3.182,4.2.3,4.2.6,10.2, 10.3,
11.1.1,11.3.7, 14.1, 14.2.1.1

Contractor’s Liability Insurance

11.1

Contractor’s Relationship with Separate Contractors
and Owner’s Forces
3.12.5,3.142,4.2.4,6,11.3.7,12.1.2,12.24
Contractor’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.2.2,33.2,3.18.1,3.18.2,5,9.6.2,9.6.7, 9.10.2,
11.3.1.2,11.3.7,11.3.8

Contractor’s Relationship with the Architect
1.1.2,15,3.13,32.2,323,324,33.1,34.2,3.5,
3.7.4,3.10,3.11,3.12,3.16, 3.18,4.1.3,4.2, 5.2,
6.2.2,7,8.3.1,9.2,9.3,9.4,9.5,9.7,9.8,9.9, 10.2.6,
103,11.3.7,12,13.5,15.1.2,15.2.1

Contractor’s Representations
3.2.1,3.2.2,35,3.12.6,6.2.2,8.2.1,9.3.3,9.8.2
Contractor’s Responsibility for Those Performing the
Work

3.3.2,3.18,5.3,6.1.3,6.2,9.5.1,10.2.8
Contractor’s Review of Contract Documents

3.2

Contractor’s Right to Stop the Work

9.7

Contractor’s Right to Terminate the Contract
14.1,15.1.6

Contractor’s Submittals
3.10,3.11,3.12.4,42.7,5.2.1,5.2.3,9.2,9.3,9.8.2,
9.8.3,9.9.1,9.10.2,9.10.3,11.1.3,11.4.2
Contractor’s Superintendent

3.9,10.2.6

Contractor’s Supervision and Construction
Procedures
1.2.2,3.3,34,3.12.10,4.2.2,4.2.7,6.1.3, 6.2.4,
7.13,73.5,73.7,82,10,12,14,15.1.3
Contractual Liability Insurance

11.1.1.8,11.2

Coordination and Correlation
1.2,3.2.1,33.1,3.10,3.12.6, 6.1.3,6.2.1

Copies Furnished of Drawings and Specifications
15,225,311

Copyrights

1.5,3.17

Correction of Work
2.3,24,3.73,942,98.2,9.8.3,9.9.1,12.1.2,12.2
Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2

Cost, Definition of

7.3.7

Costs

Attachment 4

Item 7.

24,324,3.73,3.82,3.15.2,5.4.2,6.1.1,6.2.3,
7.3.3.3,73.7,7.3.8,7.3.9,9.10.2, 10.3.2, 10.3.6,
11.3,12.1.2,12.2.1,12.2.4, 13.5, 14

Cutting and Patching

3.14,6.2.5

Damage to Construction of Owner or Separate
Contractors
3.142,6.24,10.2.1.2,10.2.5,104,11.1.1, 11.3,
1224

Damage to the Work
3.142,9.9.1,10.2.1.2,10.2.5,104,11.3.1, 12.2.4
Damages, Claims for
3.2.4,3.18,6.1.1,8.3.3,9.5.1,9.6.7,10.3.3, 11.1.1,
11.3.5,11.3.7,14.1.3,14.2.4,15.1.6

Damages for Delay
6.1.1,8.3.3,9.5.1.6,9.7,10.3.2

Date of Commencement of the Work, Definition of
8.1.2

Date of Substantial Completion, Definition of
8.1.3

Day, Definition of

8.1.4

Decisions of the Architect
3.74,42.6,42.7,42.11,4.2.12,4.2.13, 15.2, 6.3,
7.3.7,7.3.9,8.1.3,83.1,9.2,9.4,9.5.1,9.8.4,9.9.1,
13.5.2,14.2.2,14.2.4,15.1,15.2

Decisions to Withhold Certification
94.1,9.5,9.7,14.1.1.3

Defective or Nonconforming Work, Acceptance,
Rejection and Correction of
2.3,24,3.5,42.6,6.2.5,9.51,9.52,9.6.6,9.8.2,
9.9.3,9.104, 12.2.1

Definitions

1.1,2.1.1,3.1.1, 3.5,3.12.1, 3.12.2, 3.12.3, 4.1.1,
15.1.1,5.1,6.1.2,7.2.1,7.3.1,8.1,9.1,9.8.1
Delays and Extensions of Time
32,3.74,523,72.1,7.3.1,74,83,9.5.1,9.7,
10.3.2,10.4,14.3.2,15.1.5,15.2.5

Disputes

6.3,7.3.9,15.1,15.2

Documents and Samples at the Site

3.11

Drawings, Definition of

1.1.5

Drawings and Specifications, Use and Ownership of
3.11

Effective Date of Insurance

8.22,11.1.2

Emergencies

104,14.1.1.2,15.1.4

Employees, Contractor’s
3.3.2,343,3.8.1,39,3.18.2,4.2.3,4.2.6,10.2,
10.3.3,11.1.1,11.3.7, 14.1, 14.2.1.1

Equipment, Labor, Materials or
1.1.3,1.1.6,3.4,3.5,3.8.2,3.8.3,3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1,
4.2.6,4.2.7,5.2.1,6.2.1,7.3.7,9.3.2,9.3.3,9.5.1.3,
9.10.2,10.2.1,10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

AlA Document A201™ — 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 b
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Page 51

reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pr

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(3B9ADAS0)




Init.

Execution and Progress of the Work
1.1.3,1.2.1,1.2.2,2.2.3,2.2.5,3.1,3.3.1,34.1, 3.5,
3.7.1,3.10.1,3.12,3.14,4.2,6.2.2,7.1.3,7.3.5, 8.2,
9.5.1,9.9.1,10.2, 10.3, 12.2, 14.2, 14.3.1, 15.1.3
Extensions of Time
3.24,3.74,523,72.1,73,74,95.1,9.7,10.3.2,
10.4,14.3,15.1.5,15.2.5

Failure of Payment

9.5.1.3,9.7,9.10.2, 13.6, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2

Faulty Work

(See Defective or Nonconforming Work)

Final Completion and Final Payment

42.1,429,9.82,9.10,11.1.2,11.1.3,11.3.1, 11.3.5,

12.3,14.2.4,14.4.3

Financial Arrangements, Owner’s
2.2.1,13.22,141.1.4

Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance

11.3.1.1

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1

Goveming Law

13.1

Guarantees (See Warranty)

Hazardous Materials

10.2.4,10.3

Identification of Subcontractors and Suppliers
521

Indemnification

3.17,3.18,9.10.2,10.3.3,10.3.5, 10.3.6, 11.3.1.2,
11.3.7

Information and Services Required of the Owner
2.12,2.2,3.2.2,3.12.4,3.12.10,6.1.3,6.1.4,6.2.5,
9.6.1,9.6.4,9.9.2,9.10.3,10.3.3,11.2, 11.4, 13.5.1,
13.52,14.1.14,14.14,15.1.3

Initial Decision

15.2

Initial Decision Maker, Definition of

1.1.8

Initial Decision Maker, Decisions
142.2,142.4,15.2.1,15.22,15.2.3,15.2.4,15.25
Initial Decision Maker, Extent of Authority
14.2.2,14.2.4,15.1.3,15.2.1,15.2.2,15.2.3,15.24,
15.2.5

Injury or Damage to Person or Property

10.2.8, 10.4

Inspections
3.1.3,3.3.3,3.7.1,42.2,4.2.6,4.2.9,9.4.2,9.8.3,
9.9.2,9.10.1,12.2.1, 13.5

Instructions to Bidders

1.1.1

Instructions to the Contractor
3.24,3.3.1,3.8.1,52.1,7,8.2.2,12,13.5.2
Instruments of Service, Definition of

1.1.7

Insurance
3.18.1,6.1.1,7.3.7,9.3.2,9.8.4,9.9.1,9.10.2, 11
Insurance, Boiler and Machinery

Attachment 4

Item 7.

11.3.2

Insurance, Contractor’s Liability

11.1

Insurance, Effective Date of

822,11.1.2

Insurance, Loss of Use

11.3.3

Insurance, Owner’s Liability

11.2

Insurance, Property

10.2.5,11.3

Insurance, Stored Materials

932

INSURANCE AND BONDS

11

Insurance Companies, Consent to Partial Occupancy
9.9.1

Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2.1,4.2.7,42.12,4.2.13,74

Interest

13.6

Interpretation

123,14,4.1.1,5.1,6.1.2,15.1.1

Interpretations, Written

42.11,42.12,15.14

Judgment on Final Award

15.4.2

Labor and Materials, Equipment
1.1.3,1.1.6,34,3.5,3.8.2,3.8.3,3.12, 3.13,3.15.1,
426,42.7,5.2.1,6.2.1,7.3.7,9.3.2,9.3.3,9.5.1.3,
9.10.2,10.2.1,10.2.4,14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

Labor Disputes

8.3.1

Laws and Regulations

1.5,3.2.3,3.6,3.7,3.12.10, 3.13,4.1.1,9.6.4,9.9.1,
10.2.2,11.1.1,11.3,13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6,
14,15.2.8,15.4

Liens

2.1.2,9.3.3,9.10.2,9.10.4, 15.2.8

Limitations, Statutes of

12.2.5,13.7,15.4.1.1

Limitations of Liability
2.3,3.2.2,3.5,3.12.10,3.17,3.18.1,4.2.6, 4.2.7,
42.12,62.2,94.2,9.6.4,9.6.7,10.2.5,10.3.3,
11.1.2,11.2,11.3.7,12.2.5,13.4.2

Limitations of Time

2.1.2,2.2,2.4,32.2,3.10,3.11,3.12.5, 3.15.1,4.2.7,

52,53,54.1,624,73,74,82,9.2,93.1,93.3,
9.4.1,9.5,9.6,9.7,9.8,9.9,9.10, 11.1.3, 11.3.1.5,
11.3.6,11.3.10, 12.2, 13.5, 13.7, 14, 15

Loss of Use Insurance

11.3.3

Material Suppliers
1.5,3.12.1,42.4,42.6,52.1,9.3,9.4.2,9.6,9.10.5
Materials, Hazardous

10.2.4,10.3

Materials, Labor, Equipment and

Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties]

reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be p

AIA Document A201™ — 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 b :
Page52 | 5

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2018 under Order No, 2033%ee

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(3B9ADAS0)




Init.

1.1.3,1.1.6,1.5.1,3.4.1,3.5,3.8.2,3.8.3,3.12, 3.13,
3.15.1,42.6,4.2.7,5.2.1,6.2.1,7.3.7,9.3.2,9.3.3,
9.5.1.3,9.10.2, 10.2.1.2,10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2
Means, Methods, Techniques, Sequences and
Procedures of Construction
33.1,3.12.10,4.2.2,4.2.7,9.4.2

Mechanic’s Lien

2.12,15.2.8

Mediation

8.3.1,10.3.5,10.3.6, 15.2.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6, 15.3,
154.1

Minor Changes in the Work
1.1.1,3.12.8,4.2.8,7.1,7.4

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

13

Modifications, Definition of

1.1.1

Modifications to the Contract
1.1.1,1.1.2,3.11,4.1.2,4.2.1,5.2.3,7,8.3.1,9.7,
10.3.2,11.3.1

Mutual Responsibility

6.2

Nonconforming Work, Acceptance of
9.6.6,9.9.3,12.3

Nonconforming Work, Rejection and Correction of
2.3,24,35,42.6,6.2.4,9.5.1,9.82,9.9.3,9.104,
12.2.1

Notice
22.1,23,24,3.24,33.1,3.7.2,3.129,5.2.1,9.7,
9.10,10.2.2,11.1.3,12.2.2.1, 13.3, 13.5.1, 13.5.2,
14.1,14.2,152.8,15.4.1

Notice, Written
2.3,24,33.1,39.2,3.12.9,3.12.10, 5.2.1,9.7, 9.10,
10.2.2,103,11.1.3,11.3.6,12.2.2.1, 13.3, 14, 15.2.8,
15.4.1

Notice of Claims

3.74,10.2.8,15.1.2,15.4

Notice of Testing and Inspections

13.5.1,13.5.2

Observations, Contractor’s

32,374

Occupancy

222,9.6.6,9.8,11.3.1.5

Orders, Written
1.1.1,2.3,39.2,7,822,11.39,12.1,12.2.2.1,
13.5.2,143.1

OWNER

2

Owner, Definition of

2.1.1

Owner, Information and Services Required of the
212,22,322,3.12.10,6.1.3,6.1.4,6.2.5,9.3.2,
9.6.1,9.6.4,99.2,9.10.3,10.3.3, 11.2, 11.3, 13.5.1,
13.5.2,14.1.14,14.14,15.1.3

Owner’s Authority
1.5,2.1.1,2.3,2.4,34.2,3.8.1,3.12.10, 3.14.2, 4.1.2,
4.13,42.4,429,52.1,524,54.1,6.1,63,7.2.1,

Attachment 4

Item 7.

7.3.1,82.2,83.1,9.3.1,9.3.2,9.5.1,9.6.4,9.9.1,
9.10.2,10.3.2,11.1.3,11.3.3, 11.3.10, 12.2.2, 12.3,
13.2.2,14.3,14.4,15.2.7

Owner’s Financial Capability
221,1322,14.1.14

Owner’s Liability Insurance

11.2

Owner’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2,5.2,5.3,5.4,9.6.4,9.10.2, 14.2.2

Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work

24,1422

Owner’s Right to Clean Up

6.3

Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award
Separate Contracts

6.1

Owner’s Right to Stop the Work

2.3

Owner’s Right to Suspend the Work

14.3

Owner’s Right to Terminate the Contract

142

Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications and
Other Instruments of Service
1.1.1,1.1.6,1.1.7,1.5,2.2.5,3.2.2,3.11, 3.17,4.2.12,
53

Partial Occupancy or Use

9.6.6,9.9,11.3.1.5

Patching, Cutting and

3.14,6.2.5

Patents

3.17

Payment, Applications for
425,73.9,92,93,94,9.5,9.6.3,9.7,9.8.5,9.10.1,
142.3,14.2.4,1443

Payment, Certificates for
4.2.5,429,93.3,9.4,9.5,9.6.1,9.6.6,9.7,9.10.1,
9.10.3,13.7,14.1.1.3, 14.2.4

Payment, Failure of

9.5.1.3,9.7,9.10.2, 13.6, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2
Payment, Final
42.1,429,9.8.2,9.10,11.1.2,11.1.3,11.4.1, 12.3,
13.7,14.2.4,14.4.3

Payment Bond, Performance Bond and
7.3.74,9.6.7,9.103,11.4

Payments, Progress

9.3,9.6,9.8.5,9.10.3, 13.6, 14.2.3, 15.1.3
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

9

Payments to Subcontractors
542,95.13,9.6.2,9.6.3,9.6.4,9.6.7,142.1.2
PCB

10.3.1

Performance Bond and Payment Bond
7.3.74,9.6.7,9.103,11.4

Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws

AlA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 b
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prq

222,3.7,3.13,73.74,10.2.2
Page53 | ¢

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2018 under Order No. 2933912647 which

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(3B9ADAS50)



Init.

PERSONS AND PROPERTY, PROTECTION OF
10

Polychlorinated Biphenyl

10.3.1

Product Data, Definition of

3.122

Product Data and Samples, Shop Drawings
3.11,3.12,4.2.7

Progress and Completion
422,82,9.8,99.1,14.14,15.13

Progress Payments

9.3,9.6,9.8.5,9.10.3, 13.6, 14.2.3, 15.1.3

Project, Definition of

1.14

Project Representatives

42.10

Property Insurance

10.2.5,11.3

PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
10

Regulations and Laws
1.5,3.2.3,3.6,3.7,3.12.10,3.13,4.1.1,9.6.4,9.9.1,
10.2.2,11.1,11.4,13.1, 13.4,13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6, 14,
15.2.8,15.4

Rejection of Work

35,4.2.6,12.2.1

Releases and Waivers of Liens

9.10.2

Representations
3.2.1,3.5,3.12.6,6.2.2,8.2.1,9.3.3,9.4.2,9.5.1,
9.8.2,9.10.1

Representatives
2.1.1,3.1.1,3.9,4.1.1,42.1,4.2.2,4.2.10,5.1.1,
5.1.2,13.2.1

Responsibility for Those Performing the Work
3.3.2,3.18,4.2.3,5.3,6.1.3,6.2,6.3,9.5.1, 10
Retainage

9.3.1,9.6.2,9.8.5,9.9.1,9.10.2,9.10.3

Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions
by Contractor

32,3.12.7,6.1.3

Review of Contractor’s Submittals by Owner and
Architect
3.10.1,3.10.2,3.11,3.12,4.2,5.2,6.1.3,9.2,9.8.2
Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and
Samples by Contractor

3.12

Rights and Remedies
1.1.2,2.3,2.4,3.5,3.74,3.152,42.6,53,5.4, 6.1,
6.3,7.3.1,8.3,9.5.1,9.7,10.2.5,10.3, 12.2.2, 12.2 4,
13.4,14,154

Royalties, Patents and Copyrights

3.17

Rules and Notices for Arbitration

15.4.1

Safety of Persons and Property

10.2, 104

Attachment 4

Item 7.

Safety Precautions and Programs
33.1,42.2,4.2.7,53,10.1,10.2,10.4

Samples, Definition of

3.12.3

Samples, Shop Drawings, Product Data and
3.11,3.12,427

Samples at the Site, Documents and

3.11

Schedule of Values

9.2,93.1

Schedules, Construction
3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2,6.1.3,15.1.5.2

Separate Contracts and Contractors
1.1.4,3.12.5,3.14.2,42.4,42.7,6,8.3.1,12.1.2
Shop Drawings, Definition of

3.12.1

Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples
3.11,3.12,42.7

Site, Use of

3.13,6.1.1,6.2.1

Site Inspections
3.2.2,3.33,3.7.1,3.74,42,94.2,9.10.1, 13.5
Site Visits, Architect’s
3.7.4,4.22,429,942,9.5.1,99.2,9.10.1,13.5
Special Inspections and Testing
42.6,12.2.1,13.5

Specifications, Definition of

1.1.6

Specifications
1.1.1,1.1.6,1.2.2,1.5,3.11,3.12.10,3.17,4.2.14
Statute of Limitations

13.7,15.4.1.1

Stopping the Work

2.3,9.7,10.3, 14.1

Stored Materials

6.2.1,9.3.2,10.2.1.2,10.24

Subcontractor, Definition of

5.1.1

SUBCONTRACTORS

5

Subcontractors, Work by
1.2.2,3.3.2,3.12.1,4.2.3,52.3,53,54,9.3.1.2,
9.6.7

Subcontractual Relations
5.3,54,93.1.2,9.6,9.10,10.2.1, 14.1, 14.2.1
Submittals
3.10,3.11,3.12,4.2.7,5.2.1,5.2.3,7.3.7,9.2,9.3,
9.8,9.9.1,9.10.2,9.10.3, 11.1.3

Submittal Schedule

3.10.2,3.12.5,4.2.7

Subrogation, Waivers of

6.1.1,11.3.7

Substantial Completion
429,8.1.1,8.1.3,8.2.3,94.2,9.8,9.9.1,9.10.3,
12.2,13.7

Substantial Completion, Definition of

9.8.1

Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treatie
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be p

AIA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 b,
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 293312!”%

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

Page 54

(3B9ADAS0)



Init.

Attachment 4

Item 7.
Substitution of Subcontractors 2.1.2,2.2,2.4,32.2,3.10,3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2,
523,524 52,53,54,6.2.4,73,74,82,9.2,9.3.1,9.3.3,
Substitution of Architect 9.4.1,9.5,9.6,9.7,9.8,9.9,9.10, 11.1.3, 12.2, 13.5,
4.1.3 13.7,14,15.1.2,15.4
Substitutions of Materials Time Limits on Claims
342,35,73.8 3.74,10.2.8, 13.7,15.1.2
Sub-subcontractor, Definition of Title to Work
512 9.3.2,9.33
Subsurface Conditions Transmission of Data in Digital Form
3.74 1.6
Successors and Assigns UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
13.2 12
Superintendent Uncovering of Work
3.9,10.2.6 12.1
Supervision and Construction Procedures Unforeseen Conditions, Concealed or Unknown
12.2,3.3,34,3.12.10,4.2.2,4.2.7,6.1.3,6.2.4, 3.74,8.3.1,10.3
7.13,73.7,82,83.1,94.2,10, 12, 14,15.1.3 Unit Prices
Surety 7.332,73.4
54.12,9.8.5,9.10.2,9.10.3, 14.2.2, 15.2.7 Use of Documents
Surety, Consent of 1.1.1,1.5,2.2.5,3.12.6,5.3
9.10.2,9.10.3 Use of Site
Surveys 3.13,6.1.1,6.2.1
223 Values, Schedule of
Suspension by the Owner for Convenience 9.2,9.3.1
14.3 Waiver of Claims by the Architect
Suspension of the Work 1342
542,143 Waiver of Claims by the Contractor
Suspension or Termination of the Contract 9.10.5,134.2,15.1.6
54.1.1,14 Waiver of Claims by the Owner
Taxes 9.93,9.103,9.104,12.22.1,13.42,1424,15.1.6
3.6,3.82.1,73.74 Waiver of Consequential Damages
Termination by the Contractor 14.2.4,15.1.6
14.1,15.1.6 Waiver of Liens
Termination by the Owner for Cause 9.10.2,9.10.4
5.4.1.1,14.2,15.1.6 Waivers of Subrogation
Termination by the Owner for Convenience 6.1.1,11.3.7
14.4 Warranty
Termination of the Architect 3.5,429,9.3.3,9.84,9.9.1,9.104, 12.2.2, 13.7
4.1.3 Weather Delays
Termination of the Contractor 15.1.5.2
14.2.2 Work, Definition of
TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE 1.1.3
CONTRACT Written Consent
14 1.52,3.4.2,3.7.4,3.12.8,3.14.2,4.1.2,9.3.2,9.8.5,
Tests and Inspections 9.9.1,9.10.2,9.10.3,114.1,13.2,13.4.2,154.4.2
3.13,333,422,42.6,42.9,9.42,9.8.3,99.2, Written Interpretations
9.10.1,10.3.2,11.4.1, 12.2.1, 13.5 42.11,4.2.12
TIME Written Notice
8 23,24,33.1,3.9,3.12.9,3.12.10, 5.2.1, 8.2.2, 9.7,
Time, Delays and Extensions of 9.10,10.2.2,10.3,11.1.3,12.2.2,12.2.4, 13.3, 14,
3.24,3.74,52.3,7.2.1,7.3.1,7.4,83,9.5.1,9.7, 15.4.1
10.3.2,104, 14.3.2,15.1.5,15.2.5 Written Orders
Time Limits 1.1.1,2.3,3.9,7,8.2.2,12.1,12.2,13.5.2, 14.3.1,
15.1.2
AIA Document A201™ — 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Page 55

reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prq

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(3B9ADAS0)




Init.

Attachment 4

Item 7.

ARTICLE1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 1.1 BASIC DEFINITIONS

§ 1.1.1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents are enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the
Agreement) and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract, other documents listed in
the Agreement and Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1) a written amendment
to the Contract signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive or (4) a written
order for a minor change in the Work issued by the Architect. Unless specifically enumerated in the Agreement, the
Contract Documents do not include the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample forms,
other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, the Contractor’s bid or
proposal, or portions of Addenda relating to bidding requirements.

§ 1.1.2 THE CONTRACT

The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entire and integrated
agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written
or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract Documents shall not be
construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind (1) between the Contractor and the Architect or the
Architect’s consultants, (2) between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub-subcontractor, (3) between the Owner
and the Architect or the Architect’s consultants or (4) between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the
Contractor. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations under the
Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect’s duties.

§ 1.1.3 THE WORK

The term “Work” means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, whether completed or
partially completed, and includes all other labor, materials, equipment and services provided or to be provided by
the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor’s obligations. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the Project.

§ 1.1.4 THE PROJECT
The Project is the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole
or a part and which may include construction by the Owner and by separate contractors.

§ 1.1.5 THE DRAWINGS
The Drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the-design, location and
dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules and diagrams.

§ 1.1.6 THE SPECIFICATIONS
The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials,
equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services.

§ 1.1.7 INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE

Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the
tangible and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants under their
respective professional services agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies,
surveys, models, sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials.

§ 1.1.8 INITIAL DECISION MAKER
The Initial Decision Maker is the person identified in the Agreement to render initial decisions on Claims in
accordance with Section 15.2 and certify termination of the Agreement under Section 14.2.2.

§ 1.2 CORRELATION AND INTENT OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

§ 1.2.1 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and
completion of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by
one shall be as binding as if required by all; performance by the Contractor shall be required only to the extent
consistent with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the
indicated results.

AlA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 19786, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAY Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties| Page 56
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pr g

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2018 under Order No. 29339 T20%T wermen
expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAS0)



Init.

Attachment 4

Item 7.

§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall not
control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be
performed by any trade.

§ 1.2.3 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words that have well-known technical or construction
industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings.

§ 1.3 CAPITALIZATION
Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of
numbered articles or (3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects.

§ 1.4 INTERPRETATION

In the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all” and “any” and
articles such as “the” and *“an,” but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in
another is not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.

§ 1.5 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE

§ 1.5.1 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and will retain all common law, statutory and
other reserved rights, including copyrights. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or
equipment suppliers shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or distribution to
meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with this Project is not to be construed as
publication in derogation of the Architect’s or Architect’s consultants’ reserved rights.

§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors and material or equipment suppliers are authorized to use
and reproduce the Instruments of Service provided to them solely and exclusively for execution of the Work. All
copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, if any, shown on the Instruments of Service.
The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers may not use the
Instruments of Service on other projects or for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the
specific written consent of the Owner, Architect and the Architect’s consultants.

§ 1.6 TRANSMISSION OF DATA IN DIGITAL FORM

If the parties intend to transmit Instruments of Service or any other information or documentation in digital form,
they shall endeavor to establish necessary protocols governing such transmissions, unless otherwise already
provided in the Agreement or the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE2 OWNER

§ 2.1 GENERAL

§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have
express authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization.
Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Architect does not have such authority. The term “Owner” means
the Owner or the Owner’s authorized representative.

§ 2.1.2 The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor within fifteen days after receipt of a written request, information
ncccessary and relevant for the Contractor to cvaluate, give notice of or enforce mechanic’s lien rights. Such
information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the Project is located,
usually referred to as the site, and the Owner’s interest therein.

§ 2.2 INFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER

§ 2.2.1 Prior to commencement of the Work, the Contractor may request in writing that the Owner provide
reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the
Contract. Thereafter, the Contractor may only request such evidence if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the
Contractor as the Contract Documents require; (2) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum; or (3)
the Contractor identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to make payment when due.
The Owner shall furnish such evidence as a condition precedent to commencement or continuation of the Work or

AJA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 b
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties, Page 57
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pr

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which
expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3BSADAS0)

10



Init.

Attachment 4

Item 7.

the portion of the Work affected by a material change. After the Owner furnishes the evidence, the Owner shall not
materially vary such financial arrangements without prior notice to the Contractor.

§ 2.2.2 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents,
including those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements,
assessments and charges required for construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent
changes in existing facilities.

§ 2.2.3 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for
the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of
information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the
Work.

§ 2.2.4 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with
reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control
and relevant to the Contractor’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the
Contractor’s written request for such information or services.

§ 2.2.5 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor one copy of
the Contract Documents for purposes of making reproductions pursuant to Section 1.5.2.

§ 2.3 OWNER'’S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK

If the Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as
required by Section 12.2 or repeatedly fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the
Owner may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such
order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part
of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity, except to the extent
required by Section 6.1.3.

§ 2.4 OWNER'’S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK

If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails
within a ten-day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such
default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner
may have, correct such deficiencies. In such case an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from
payments then or thereafter due the Contractor the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, including
Owner’s expenses and compensation for the Architect’s additional services made necessary by such default, neglect
or failure. Such action by the Owner and amounts charged to the Contractor are both subject to prior approval of the
Architect. If payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Contractor
shall pay the difference to the Owner.

ARTICLE3 CONTRACTOR

§ 3.1 GENERAL

§ 3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the
jurisdiction where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who shall have
express authority to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Contract. The term “Contractor” means
the Contractor or the Contractor’s authorized representative.

§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract

Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect’s administration of the Contract, or by tests,
inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor.

Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties P age 58

AIA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 b -
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prI

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933 ™
expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BYADAS0)

11



Init.

Attachment 4

§ 3.2 REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND FIELD CONDITIONS BY CONTRACTOR
§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site,

Item 7.

become generally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed and correlated personal

observations with requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the

Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well
the information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.2.3, shall take field measurements of any existing
conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These

obligations are for the purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and are not for the

as

purpose of discovering errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the Contractor
shall promptly report to the Architect any errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered by or made known to the

Contractor as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require. It is recognized that the

Contractor’s review is made in the Contractor’s capacity as a contractor and not as a licensed design professional,

unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.3 The Contractor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable
laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Contractor
shall promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a
request for information in such form as the Architect may require.

§ 3.2.4 If the Contractor believes that additicnal cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the

Architect issues in response to the Contractor’s notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 3.2.2 or

3.2.3, the Contractor shall make Claims as provided in Article 15. If the Contractor fails to perform the obligations

of Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner as would have been
avoided if the Contractor had performed such obligations. If the Contractor performs those obligations, the
Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors, inconsistencies or

omissions in the Contract Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions and the Contract
Documents, or for nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules

and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities.

§ 3.3 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES

§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The
Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques,
sequences and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless the Contract
Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters. If the Contract Documents give specific
instructions conceming construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, the Contractor shall

evaluate the jobsite safety thereof and, except as stated below, shall be fully and solely responsible for the jobsite
safety of such means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures. If the Contractor determines that such means,

methods, techniques, sequences or procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely written notice to

the

Owner and Architect and shall not proceed with that portion of the Work without further written instructions from

the Architect. If the Contractor is then instructed to proceed with the required means, methods, techniques,
sequences or procedures without acceptance of changes proposed by the Contractor, the Owner shall be solely

responsible for any loss or damage arising solely from those Owner-required means, methods, techniques, sequences

or procedures.

§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s cmployees,
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work fo
on behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors.

t, Or

§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that

such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work.

§ 3.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS
§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor,

materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other

AIA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by]
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.

Page 59

reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pr

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(3B9ADAS0)

12



Init.

Attachment 4

Item 7.

facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.

§ 3.4.2 Except in the case of minor changes in the Work authorized by the Architect in accordance with Sections
3.12.8 or 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the
Architect and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction Change Directive.

§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other
persons carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly
skilled in tasks assigned to them.

§ 3.5 WARRANTY

The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract will
be of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Contractor further
warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and will be free from defects,
except for those inherent in the quality of the Work the Contract Documents require or permit. Work, materials, or
equipment not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. The Contractor’s warranty excludes
remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by the Contractor, improper or
insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. If required by the
Architect, the Contractor shall fumish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.

§ 3.6 TAXES

The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Contractor that are
legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled
to go into effect.

§ 3.7 PERMITS, FEES, NOTICES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

§ 3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building
permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper
execution and completion of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and legally
required at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded.

§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.

§ 3.7.3 If the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume appropriate responsibility
for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction.

§ 3.7.4 Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are (1)
subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the Contract
Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature, that differ materially from those ordinarily
found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in the
Contract Documents, the Contractor shall promptly provide notice to the Owner and the Architect before conditions
are disturbed and in no event later than 21 days after first observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly
investigate such conditions and, if the Architect determines that they differ materially and cause an increase or
decrease in the Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, will recommend an
equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. If the Architect determines that the conditions
at the site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract Documents and that no change in the
terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect shall promptly notify the Owner and Contractor in writing, stating the
reasons. If either party disputes the Architect’s determination or recommendation, that party may proceed as
provided in Article 15.

§ 3.7.5 If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial
markers, archacological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately
suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt of such
notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume

AIA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 19686, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 |
institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties Page 60
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be p g

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/1 1/2019 under Order No. 2933GTZ0%T wrmern
expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAS50)

13



Init.

Attachment 4

Item 7.

the operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but
shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the
Contract Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in
Article 15.

§ 3.8 ALLOWANCES

§ 3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct,
but the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Contractor has reasonable
objection.

§ 3.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents,

1 Allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and
all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts;

.2 Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and
other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum but
not in the allowances; and

3 Whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual
costs and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor’s costs under Section
3.82.2.

§ 3.8.3 Materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness.

§ 3.9 SUPERINTENDENT

§ 3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance
at the Project site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and
communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor.

§ 3.9.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Owner
through the Architect the name and qualifications of a proposed superintendent. The Architect may reply within 14
days to the Contractor in writing stating (1) whether the Owner or the Architect has reasonable objection to the
proposed superintendent or (2) that the Architect requires additional time to review. Failure of the Architect to reply
within the 14 day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.

§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner or Architect has made
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner’s consent,
which shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed.

§ 3.10 CONTRACTOR'’S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULES

§ 3.10.1 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall prepare and submit for the Owner’s and
Architect’s information a Contractor’s construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall not exceed time limits
current under the Contract Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the
Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Contract Documents, and shall
provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work.

§ 3.10.2 The Contractor shall prepare a submittal schedule, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thereafter
as necessary to maintain a current submittal schedule, and shall submit the schedule(s) for the Architect’s approval.
The Architect’s approval shall not unreasonably be delayed or withheld. The submittal schedule shall (1) be
coordinated with the Contractor’s construction schedule, and (2) allow the Architect reasonable time to review
submittals. If the Contractor fails to submit a submittal schedule, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase
in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time required for review of submittals.

§ 3.10.3 The Contractor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to
the Owner and Architect.

AlA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 byj|

Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Page 61

repraduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pra

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BSADA50)

14



Init.

Attachment 4

Item 7.

§ 3.11 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE

The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the Owner one copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change
Orders and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently. to indicate field changes and selections made
during construction, and one copy of approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar required
submittals. These shall be available to the Architect and shall be delivered to the Architect for submittal to the
Owner upon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as constructed.

§ 3.12 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES

§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specially prepared for the Work by the
Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate some portion of
the Work.

§ 3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams and
other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate materials or equipment for some portion of the Work.

§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards
by which the Work will be judged.

§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose is
to demonstrate the way by which the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design
concept expressed in the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents
require submittals. Review by the Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2.7. Informational submittals
upon which the Architect is not expected to take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Documents.
Submittals that are not required by the Contract Documents may be returned by the Architect without action.

§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve and submit to the
Architect Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents in
accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal
schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of
the Owner or of separate contractors.

§ 3.12.6 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals, the Contractor represents to
the Owner and Architect that the Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2) determined and verified
materials, field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so and (3) checked and
coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract
Documents.

§ 3.12.7 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittal
and review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals until the respective submittal has been
approved by the Architect.

§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of
responsibility for deviations from requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect’s approval of Shop
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Architect
in writing of such deviation at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has given written approval to the specific
deviation as a minor change in the Work, or (2) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive has been issued
authorizing the deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Architect’s approval thereof.

§ 3.12.9 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data,
Samples or similar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals. In the
absence of such written notice, the Architect’s approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions.

§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of
architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of
the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contractor’s
responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures. The Contractor shall not be

AIA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 b
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties| P age 62
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pr|

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 293392827 wrmen
expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3BSADAS0)

15



Init.

Attachment 4

required to provide professional services in violation of applicable law. If professional design services or
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment are specifically required of the

Item 7.

Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will specify all performance and design criteria

that such services must satisfy. The Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by a
properly licensed design professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations,

specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings
and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear
such professional’s written approval when submitted to the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled

to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals performed or
provided by such design professionals, provided the Owner and Architect have specified to the Contractor all

performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12.10, the Architect will

review, approve or take other appropriate action on submittals only for the limited purpose of checking for
conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Contract
shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the performance and design criteria specified in the Contract
Documents.

§ 3.13 USE OF SITE

or

The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,

rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities and the Contract Documents and shall not unreason
encumber the site with materials or equipment.

§ 3.14 CUTTING AND PATCHING

ably

§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting or patching required to complete the Work or to make

its parts fit together properly. All areas requiring cutting, fitting and patching shall be restored to the condition
existing prior to the cutting, fitting and patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents.

§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially completed

construction of the Owner or separate contractors by cutting, patching or otherwise altering such construction, or by
excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter such construction by the Owner or a separate contractor
except with written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor; such consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld. The Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold from the Owner or a separate contractor the Contractor’s

consent to cutting or otherwise altering the Work.

§ 3.15 CLEANING UP

§ 3.15.1 The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials or

rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove waste

materials, rubbish, the Contractor’s tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials from and about

the Project.

§ 3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so and Owner

shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor.

§ 3.16 ACCESS TO WORK
The Contractor shall provide the Owner and Architect access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever
located.

§ 3.17 ROYALTIES, PATENTS AND COPYRIGHTS

The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement
of copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect harmless from loss on account thereof, but

shall not be responsible for such defense or loss when a particular design, process or product of a particular
manufacturer or manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are
contained in Drawings, Specifications or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect. However, if the
Contractor has reason to believe that the required design, process or product is an infringement of a copyright or
patent, the Contractor shall be responsible for such loss unless such information is promptly furnished to the
Architect.

a

AIA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 byj|
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.

Page 63

reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prd

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(3BOADAS50)

16



Init.

Attachment 4

Item 7.

§ 3.18 INDEMNIFICATION

§ 3.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner,
Architect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages,
losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the
Work, provided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death,
or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the
negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or
anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is
caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce
other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section
3.18.

§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3.18 by an employee of the Contractor,
a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the
indemnification obligation under Section 3.18.1 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages,
compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts,
disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

ARTICLE 4 ARCHITECT

§ 4.1 GENERAL

§ 4.1.1 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture or an entity lawfully practicing
architecture in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number.

§ 4.1.2 Duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Architect as set forth in the Contract Documents
shall not be restricted, modified or extended without written consent of the Owner, Contractor and Architect.
Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

§ 4.1.3 If the employment of the Architect is terminated, the Owner shall employ a successor architect as to whom
the Contractor has no reasonable objection and whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the
Architect.

§ 4.2 ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT

§ 4.2.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and will be
an Owner’s representative during construction until the date the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment.
The Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract
Documents.

§ 4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise agreed
with the Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed,
and to determine in general if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when
fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to
make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Architect will
not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for, the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or
procedures, or for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the
Contractor’s rights and responsibilities under the Contract Documents, except as provided in Section 3.3.1.

§ 4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and
quality of the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract
Documents and from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects and
deficiencies observed in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the
Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect will not have control over or
charge of and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of the Contractor, Subcontractors, or their agents or
employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties Page 64

AlA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 19686, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 b;
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pJ

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAS0)

17



Init.

Attachment 4

Item 7.

§ 4.2.4 COMMUNICATIONS FACILITATING CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications have been specially
authorized, the Owner and Contractor shall endeavor to communicate with each other through the Architect about
matters arising out of or relating to the Contract. Communications by and with the Architect’s consultants shall be
through the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and material suppliers shall be through the
Contractor. Communications by and with separate contractors shall be through the Owner.

§ 4.2.5 Based on the Architect’s evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the Architect will review
and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts.

§ 4.2.6 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the
Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to require inspection or testing of the
Work in accordance with Sections 13.5.2 and 13.5.3, whether or not such Work is fabricated, installed or completed.
However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to
exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors,
material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the
Work.

§ 4.2.7 The Architect will review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s submittals
such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance
with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect’s action will be
taken in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved
submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional
judgment to permit adequate review. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the
accuracy and completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for
installation or performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor as
required by the Contract Documents. The Architect’s review of the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the
Contractor of the obligations under Sections 3.3, 3.5 and 3.12. The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval
of safety precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, methods,
techniques, sequences or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an
assembly of which the item is a component.

§4.2.8 The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, and may authorize minor
changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4. The Architect will investigate and make determinations and
recommendations regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3.7.4.

§ 4.2.9 The Architect will conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date
of final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 9.8; receive and forward to the
Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and
assembled by the Contractor pursuant to Section 9.10; and issue a final Certificate for Payment pursuant to Section
9.10.

§ 4.2.10 If the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more project representatives to assist in
carrying out the Architect’s responsibilities at the site. The duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of
such project representatives shall be as set forth in an exhibit to be incorporated in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.11 The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests
will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.

§ 4.2.12 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable
from, the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not
show partiality to either and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.

§ 4.2.13 The Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent
expressed in the Contract Documents.

AlA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by

Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Page 65

reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pr

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933912647 which

expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3B9ADAS0)

18



Init.

Attachment 4

Item 7.

§ 4.2.14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The
Architect’s response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and
Specifications in response to the requests for information.

ARTICLES SUBCONTRACTORS

§ 5.1 DEFINITIONS

§ 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the
Work at the site. The term “Subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in
number and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term “Subcontractor”
does not include a separate contractor or subcontractors of a separate contractor.

§ 5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to
perform a portion of the Work at the site. The term “Sub-subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract
Documents as if singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-
subcontractor.

§ 5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF THE WORK

§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents or the bidding requirements, the Contractor, as soon as
practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Owner through the Architect the names of
persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design)
proposed for each principal portion of the Work. The Architect may reply within 14 days to the Contractor in
writing stating (1) whether the Owner or the Architect has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or
entity or (2) that the Architect requires additional time for review. Failure of the Owner or Architect to reply within
the 14-day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Architect has made
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the
Contractor has made reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.3 If the Owner or Architect has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Contractor, the
Contractor shall propose another to whom the Owner or Architect has no reasonable objection. If the proposed but
rejected Subcontractor was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall
be increased or decreased by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appropriate Change Order
shall be issued before commencement of the substitute Subcontractor’s Work. However, no increase in the Contract
Sum or Contract Time shall be allowed for such change unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively
in submitting names as required.

§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not substitute a Subcontractor, person or entity previously selected if the Owner or
Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution.

§ 5.3 SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATIONS

By appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, the Contractor shall require each
Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by
terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities,
including the responsibility for safety of the Subcontractor’s Work, which the Contractor, by these Documents,
assumes toward the Owner and Architect. Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the
Owner and Architect under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor
so that subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically
provided otherwise in the subcontract agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the
Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the
Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The
Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement,
copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will be bound, and, upon written request of the
Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract agreement that may

Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties| Page 66

AIA Document A201™ — 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 b
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be pJ

maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA saftware at 15:58:46 ET on 11/11/2019 under Order No. 2933 m
expires on 08/30/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BSADAS0)

19



Init.

Attachment

4

Item 7.

be at variance with the Contract Documents. Subcontractors will similarly make copies of applicable portions of
such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-subcontractors.

§ 5.4 CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS
§ 5.4.1 Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided
that
1 assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to
Section 14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notifyi